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Financial Highlights
MBEE

Year ended 31 March
BZ3A3MBLEE

Percentage

2021 2020 Change

2021 F 20204 BOLEH
(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
(AE®ER) (BE8A8T)

Revenue W= 530.0 569.6 -7.0%

Gross Profit EF 74.8 83.7 -10.6%

Profit for the year F X% 7 73.8 20.7 256.5%

Total Assets BEE 276.5 207.7 33.1%

Total Equity - Fak o 208.7 134.9 54.7%

Key Financial Ratios FTEMBLE

Gross profit margin EF = 14.1% 14.7%
Net profit margin Farp e 13.9% 3.6%
Return on equity A% 7K [ # R 35.4% 15.3%
Return on total assets 488 FE Bl ¥ K 26.7% 10.0%
Dividend payout ratio & B L& 48.0% N/A 7~ A
Interest coverage ratio | BB = 376.9 times {Z 71.9 times &
Current ratio VEI S 4.6 times 1Z 2.9 times 13
Quick ratio REN LR 4.6 times & 2.9 times &
Gearing ratio BEARBELE 0.03 times & 0.06 times &
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Chairperson’s Statement

ERHE

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group” or “Winson Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2021 (“FY2021").

The FY2021 has been plagued by the outbreak of the coronavirus
disease 2019 (“COVID-19”), which brought unprecedented changes to
the business environment and lifestyle of the whole society. Meanwhile,
both medical measures and hygiene procedures are of paramount
importance in disease control and the Group, being one of the leading
environmental hygiene services providers, is at the forefront in the fight
against the COVID-19 pandemic. Despite some businesses have
shortened opening hours or adopted remote working arrangement, which
has temporarily reduced the need for hygiene services, Winson Group’s
hygiene services team remained committed to delivering its works to full
extent where required and offer additional services to enhance hygiene
standard for disease prevention and control, such as cleaning and
sanitising at more frequent intervals, mist disinfection of business
premises and enclosed public area, etc. throughout FY2021 and during
the pandemic outbreak.

Given the current harsh and rapidly changing operating environment and
economic conditions, the environmental hygiene services market may
undergo a stage of consolidation and phasing out of the weak. But with
rising hygiene awareness, expected increase in government spending on
waste management (such as the municipal solid waste charging scheme
and various waste reduction and recycling initiatives), rising number of
properties in Hong Kong and the continuous development of public
transport system, the market size of the environmental hygiene services
sector is expected to increase in the foreseeable future. As such, the
Group has been taking a combination of strategic steps to strengthen
organic growth and to explore opportunities for horizontal development.

The Group is working on registering itself as a supplier to a public health
service operator, which would serve as a showcase for the standard of
service that the Group is able to achieve and the service quality of the
Winson brand. It would provide not only a new source of revenue for the
Group, but also be a stepping stone for tapping into whole new category
of potential customers operating in the healthcare services sector. The
Group also leverages on its customer network to cross-sell our services
(such as pest control and waste management services) and will focus on
developing specialised and premium environmental hygiene service
offerings.
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Chairperson’s Statement

ERE®|E

Simultaneously, the Group is actively exploring horizontal business
development opportunities, including possible expansion in geographic
coverage and in property related synergised services, such as pest
control, property security and general property management services,
whether in the form of self-establishment, business cooperation, joint
venture, and possible business acquisition both in Hong Kong and at
other locations in the Greater Bay Area. The national government’s
promulgation of the Outline Development Plan for the Greater Bay Area in
2019 signified a new milestone in the development of the Greater Bay
Area; the plan outlined a number of policy areas for development,
including, among others, innovation and technology, medical services,
financial services, and environmental protection and sustainable
development. It is expected there will be substantial growth in commercial
activities in the Greater Bay Area in the near future, which will particularly
bring about ample opportunities for technologically advanced and
premium hygiene and waste management services. The Group targets to
achieve a detailed expansion plan within the current financial year ending
31 March 2022 and will keep its shareholders and potential investors
informed should any solid arrangement is reached.

On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to express my utmost
gratitude to the Group’s staff members for their dedication to
continuously render quality hygiene services amidst the intimidating
pandemic outbreak. We are also very thankful for the continuous trust
and support from our customers, suppliers and shareholders during the
particularly difficult FY2021. The Winson Group will work its best to
continue delivering quality customer service and financial results for the
interest of all our stakeholders.

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business experienced a downward adjustment in the
FY2021, mainly as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak which led to the
suspension of the Group’s airline catering support services business
since March 2020 and with no revenue recorded for FY2021, which
previously contributed revenue of approximately HK$33.1 million for the
year ended 31 March 2020 (“FY2020”).

Environmental Hygiene and Related Services

Performance of the environmental hygiene and related services segment
was also adversely affected, but to a less extent, by the pandemic due to
the combined effects of () the Group’s airline catering operators
customers have scaled down their operations substantially and required
less environmental hygiene and related services; (i) some customers
have shortened opening hours or adopted remote working arrangement
and therefore have reduced cleaning needs; and (i) higher demand for
services to enhance hygiene standard for disease prevention and control,
such as cleaning and sanitising at more frequent intervals, mist
disinfection of business premises and enclosed public area. Overall, the
environmental hygiene and related services segment recorded revenue of
approximately HK$530.0 million for FY2021, which is a slight decline of
approximately HK$6.5 million or 1.2% from the FY2020.

Public hygiene awareness has consistently been improving in modern
society and the COVID-19 outbreak has triggered further consciousness
on the importance of both environmental and personal hygiene; and the
Group is well positioned to cater for such rising demands. During
FY2021, the Group secured 15 new and 85 renewal of contracts with
estimated contract value of HK$27.6 milion and HK$773.6 million
respectively. The tender success rate for FY2021 remained steady at
20.4% while the contract renewal rate improved to 71.4%; such
encourage results led to the Group’s value of contracts on hand attaining
a new high with total estimated value of approximately HK$1,408.7
million at 31 March 2021, out of which approximately HK$655.5 million
being outstanding contract value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWRE DM

The Group has always considered our staff as our most valuable assets
and at the time of pandemic, the Group strived to provide our staff with
sufficient and effective personal protective equipment to safeguard
themselves from exposure to disease. The Group also paid one-off anti-
epidemic allowance to staff members as recognition for their commitment
to uphold their duties amidst looming health threats. Additional costs
were also incurred on cleaning consumables and equipment as a
measure to heighten hygiene standard. All of the above rendered
negative impact on the profitability of the Group’s operation and as a
result, the gross profit margin of the environmental hygiene and related
services segment declined to 14.1% for FY2021, as compared to 15.0%
for the FY2020.

OUTLOOK

The COVID-19 outbreak since early 2020 has ravaged consumer
sentiment and business activities. Albeit the nature of the environmental
hygiene and related services may render it less susceptible to the effect
of disease outbreak, the Group is paying close attention to development
of the COVID-19 situation and market condition in general for possible
impacts on the Group’s operation.

Meanwhile, the Group will focus on developing its environmental hygiene
and related services business and stay vigilant of opportunities for gaining
of market share and potential horizontal development. The Group is in
the progress of registering itself as a supplier to a public health service
operator, which requires specialised skills, quality and advanced
equipment, stringent product specifications and meticulous service
delivery in order to qualify; such would provide a new source of revenue
and also allow the Group tap into a new category of potential customers
operating in the healthcare sector. The Group also leverages on its
customer network to cross-sell our services (such as pest control and
waste management services) and will focus on offering specialised and
premium environmental hygiene and related services (such as vapourised
cleaning and disinfection services, eco-friendly cleaning products and
services, servicing hard-to-reach positions and special-care material
surfaces, etc.) to capture organic growth. Simultaneously, the Group is
actively studying horizontal business development plan, including the
possibility to extend its business presence to the Greater Bay Area and
to launch new service offerings which synergies with its current
environmental hygiene and related services business, such as pest
control, property security and general property management services.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Kk JEIEIR E B BR A T
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Overall, despite the present less than favourable market condition, the
general business outlook of the Group remains positive in the medium to
long term.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the FY2021, total revenue was approximately HK$530.0 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 7.0% (FY2020: approximately
HK$569.6 million). The decrease in revenue was mainly due to decrease
or temporary suspension of business activities due to COVID-19 in food
industry which led to reduce in food waste removal services, reduce in
manpower deployment for shopping arcades due to substantial drop of
shoppers and suspension of airline catering support services business
due to suspension of air flight in travel industry.

REMmME BEETHHERATEEMS
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The following is an analysis of Group’s revenue by segment: REBIRDEE DK S DA T -
2021 2020
2021 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000 %
FET FAET
Environmental hygiene and RIEEE RAERE
related services 529,987 100.0 536,466 94.2
Airline catering support services it 25 & 1 % & R 1% - - 33,093 5.8
Total @t 529,987 100.0 569,559 100.0

For the FY2021, revenue from environmental hygiene and related services
amounted to approximately HK$530.0 million (FY2020: approximately
HK$536.5 million). The global outbreak of COVID-19 has suspended the
demand for airline catering support services, no revenue was recorded
from this segment for the year (FY2020: approximately HK$33.1 million).

Cost of Services

For the FY2021 and FY2020, the cost of services of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$455.2 million and HK$485.9 million respectively,
representing approximately 85.9% and 85.3% of the Group’s revenue for
the corresponding years. The cost of services of the Group comprised
direct wages, consumables and sub-contracting fees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit decreased from approximately HK$83.7 million for the
FY2020 to approximately HK$74.8 milion for the FY2021. The overall
gross profit margin decreased from approximately 14.7% for the FY2020
to approximately 14.1% for the FY2021. The following table sets forth
breakdown of gross profit and gross profit margin by segment:

Year ended

31 March 2021
EH 22021 F3 A3 HIEFE  EENIeekcy s Foh i =Nla:

ERNRBR=R

FEHME2020 FHHSTEEE TR L 2
P21 F R T7T48 B BB L BREERN X
B 202087 4 H9 £914.7% 3 2> = 2021 B 4 &Y
#9141% - TERHINIZDBE DN EF KT
FI =AM

Year ended
31 March 2020

Gross Profit Gross Profit

Gross Profit Margin Gross Profit Margin
E F E R xE EH FEH=
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %
FET FAT

Environmental hygiene and RIBEE R AB R
related services 74,824 14.1 80,440 15.0
Airline catering support services i 22 & 88 2 18 IR 1% - - 3,265 9.9
Total 4zt 74,824 14.1 83,705 14.7

The gross profit of environmental hygiene and related services decreased
by approximately 7.0% from approximately HK$80.4 milion for the
FY2020 to HK$74.8 milion for the FY2021. The overall gross profit
margin decreased from approximately 15.0% for FY2020 to 14.1% for
FY2021.

The drop of gross profit of environmental hygiene and related services
was mainly due to reduced business activities in food waste removal
service and reduced of services required for shopping arcade due to
substantial drop of shoppers as impact of outbreak of COVID-19
epidemic. The zero gross profit contribution from airline catering support
services was due to suspension of service by customers from March
2020 onwards because of outbreak of COVID-19.

General Operating Expenses

The general operating expenses increased by approximately HK$7.2
million, representing an increase of approximately 12.5% to approximately
HK$65.0 million for the FY2021 as compared with that for the FY2020
which was mainly attributable to an one-off anti-epidemic allowance of
approximately HK$7.5 million paid to staff for the FY2021. The general
operating expenses for the FY2021 also included professional fees of
approximately HK$2.8 million incurred in relation to the Company’s
transfer of listing to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and a
charitable donation of HK$1.0 million.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Kk JEIZBEEBFR A T
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERENWR DN

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by approximately 45.0% from
approximately HK$0.4 million for the FY2020 to approximately HK$0.2
million for the FY2021 as the Group required less external financing for
working capital requirement.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the
Year Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group’s profit and total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the Company for each of the FY2021 and FY2020 were
approximately HK$73.8 million and HK$20.7 million respectively,
representing of approximately 13.9% and 3.6% of the respective year’'s
total revenue. The increase in net profit was mainly attributable to the
receipt of subsidies of approximately HK$65.5 million from government
under employment support scheme. Setting aside the effect of
employment support scheme subsidy from the government Anti-epidemic
Fund, the one-off discretionary allowance paid to staff and expenditures
in relation to the Company’s transfer of listing to the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, the Group’s profit for the FY2021 would be
approximately HK$18.4 million.

Capital Expenditure

During the FY2021, the Group’s capital expenditure mainly included
additions in equipment and motor vehicles amounted to approximately
HK$8.8 million (FY2020: HK$1.1 million). These capital expenditures were
mainly financed by fund generated from operating activities.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s total current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$238.0 million (31 March 2020:
HK$173.0 million) and HK$52.1 million (31 March 2020: HK$59.0 million)
respectively, while the current ratio was approximately 4.6 times (31
March 2020: approximately 2.9 times).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$276.5 million which were financed by total liabilities and total equity
of approximately HK$67.8 million and HK$208.7 million respectively. As
at 31 March 2021, the Group had cash and bank balance of
approximately HK$121.7 million (31 March 2020: approximately HK$40.5
million).
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The Group gearing ratio was 0.03 times as at 31 March 2021 (31 March
2020: 0.06 times), which was calculated based on the total bank
borrowings over total equity of the Group.

There was no change to the Company’s capital structure during the year
ended 31 March 2021. As at 31 March 2021, the issued share capital of
the Company was HK$6,000,000 divided into 600,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”).

EMPLOYEES, TRAINING AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 2,077 (31 March 2020: 1,967)
employees. The Group enters into separate employment contracts with
each of the Group’s employees in accordance with the applicable
employment laws in Hong Kong. The remuneration package includes
basic salary, bonuses and other cash allowances or subsidies. The
Group conducts annual review on salary, bonuses and promotions based
on the performance of each employee. The total staff costs and related
expenses (including directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 31 March
2021 were approximately HK$321.3 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 1.6% or approximately HK$5.3 million as compared with
approximately HK$326.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Apart from basic remuneration, share options have been granted under
the pre-IPO share option scheme to recognise the contribution to the
Group by an executive Director and certain employees of the members of
the Group. Further share options may be granted under share option
scheme to attract and retain the best available personnel, provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time), as well as
promote the success of the business of the Group.

In order to provide quality services to customers, the Group provides on-
going training regularly to relevant staff across different departments with
topics including but not limited to information technology, environmental
protection, ISO training, safety training as well as trainings for supervisory
roles, etc. Such trainings are either provided internally or by external
parties.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group generated all of the revenue and incurred most of the
costs in Hong Kong dollars for the year ended 31 March 2021, there was
no significant exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation and the Group did
not maintain any hedging policy against foreign exchange risk. The
management will consider hedging significant currency exposure should
the need arise.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2020 and 31 March 2021.

CHARGE OVER GROUP’S ASSETS

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings of carrying value of
approximately HK$26.2 million as at 31 March 2021 (31 March 2020:
approximately HK$27.2 million), were pledged to secure the bank loans.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$1.5 million (31 March 2020: nil) in respect of
contracted but not provided for purchase of property, plant and
equipment.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
March 2021.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any significant investment held as at 31 March
2021.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group did not have any plans for material investments or capital
assets as of 31 March 2021.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Based on the offer price of HK$0.42 per share, the net proceeds from
the share offer, after deducting listing related expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$40.1 million. The Group has utilised and will continue
to utilise such net proceeds from the share offer for the purposes set out
in the section headed “Statement of Business Objectives and Use of
Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 February 2017 (the
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“Prospectus”). As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s planned application %8 - A2021 3 A31 H @ N E B A 15 N IEF
and actual utilisation of the net proceeds is set out below: B2 ARG LRERHAHBRAE:Y WM T
Expected
Unutilised net timeline for
Percentage of Actual usage proceeds as the use of
total net Planned up to 31 at 31 March  unutilised net
proceeds applications March 2021 2021 proceeds
HZE2021F A2021 %
3HB31HZ 3A31HZ BAKEH
HBFRBRIE ERHA AEA MEREZEH
Use of proceeds FERERAE FHEEOL sTE AR BN FEMERE MWEHNERX
HK$ in million  HK$ in million  HK$ in million
BEBT BEBT BEBTT
For strengthening the Group’s il 58 7N £ [ @] /Y 45.0% 18.1 18.1 — N/A
available financial resources A% EIR 38 A
to finance cash flow LABBIZE Y
mismatch under the tender IH NI mER
contracts REES
For increasing the market BiE IR A E 7.0% 2.8 2.2 0.6 By/before
penetration by strengthen mEHERS 31 March 2022
the promotion of the mHhE X K2022F3 A
Group’s brand 318,/ Z#i
For strengthening the ZEEEEBRE 19.0% 7.6 7.6 — N/A
established position in the RIS E R T iE A
environmental services BE A iz
industry in Hong Kong
For enhancing the information 38 & &1 &} Ez 19.0% 7.6 5.1 2.5 By/before
technology system to AR eSLE 31 March 2022
strengthen operational B K Bk %% g & 202243 A
efficiency and service 318,/ 28
qualities
For the use as general AIEREH 10.0% 4.0 4.0 — N/A
working capital of the —REEES i A
Group
Total st 40.1 37.0 3.1
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As at 31 March 2021, the unutilised net proceeds amounted to
approximately HK$3.1 million, which was intended to be utilised for (j)
enhancing the information technology system to strengthen operational
efficiency and service qualities as to approximately HK$2.5 million; and (i)
increasing the market penetration by strengthen the promotion of the
Group’s brand as to approximately HK$0.6 million.

Due to the prolonging COVID-19 pandemic, unprecedented change has
been made to the business environment socially and economically.
Commercial activities and engagements have been cut out due to social
distance restriction. Advertising and event sponsorship has been
substantially reduced/suspended due to budget cut down and the
production line from IT products manufacturer has also been suspended,
resulting in delay in delivery of products. As a result, the Company’s
utilization plan in increasing the market penetration and enhancing the
information technology system has inevitably been delayed. With the
introduction of COVID-19 vaccine, pandemic has been progressively
relived. Under this condition, the Company will be more confident to
resume the utilization plan with appropriate tools and channels for the
long run. It is expected the use of unutilised net proceeds be completed
by 31 March 2022.

As at 31 March 2021, the unutilised net proceeds of approximately
HK$3.1 million have been placed as interest bearing deposits with a
licensed bank in Hong Kong and are intended to be applied in a manner
consistent with the proposed allocations in the Prospectus.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There are no significant events after the reporting period and up to the
date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognise the importance of good corporate governance in
management and internal procedures so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“‘CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange* as its own code of corporate governance.

Save for the deviation of code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as
described below, the Board considers that, the Company has complied,
to the extent applicable and permissible, with the code provisions as set
out in the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2021 and the
Directors will use their best endeavours to procure the Company to
comply with the CG Code and make disclosure of deviation from such
code in accordance with the Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules or the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)* as its code of conduct for
securities transactions by Directors. The Directors are reminded of their
obligations under the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules or the Model Code* on a regular basis.
The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors, and all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required standard of
dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules or the
Model Code* during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group, gives
direction and make decisions on the Group’s strategies, policies,
business plan and financial budget and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. In addition, to oversee particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs, the Board has established three Board
committees, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”). The Board has
delegated to the Board committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective terms of reference. Further details of the Board committees
are set out in this report.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine members,
consisting of four executive Directors, and five independent non-
executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen

Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

Mr. Chan Chun Sing

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report, there was no change in the composition of the Board.

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills appropriate
to the business requirements of the Company. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 64 to 70 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” that Madam Ng Sing Mui is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei
and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, and Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the sister of Mr. Sze Wai
Lun, the Board members do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among themselves.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 5.05(1) of the GEM Listing Rules or Rule 3.10(1) of the
Listing Rules*, every board of directors of a listed issuer must include at
least three independent non-executive directors. In addition, pursuant to
Rules 5.05A and 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules or Rules 3.10A and
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules*, every listed issuer is required to have such
number of independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-third of the board, and at least one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Board consisted of five independent non-executive
Directors during the year ended 31 March 2021, with three independent
non-executive Directors possessing appropriate professional
quallifications or accounting or related financial management expertise,
and the number of independent non-executive Directors represents more
than one-half of the Board. There is a strong independent element in the
Board to provide independent judgement.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and
concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has renewed the letter of appointment with each of the
independent non-executive Directors for a term of two years commencing
on 16 March 2020 unless terminated by not less than three months prior
written notice served by either party on the other or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the letter of appointment. Each of such
appointments is subject to the rotation and retirement provisions in the
articles of association of the Company.

CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires the responsibilities
between the chairperson and chief executive officer should be separated
and should not be performed by the same individual.
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Up to the date of this report, the Company has not appointed a chief
executive officer and the role and functions of chief executive officer have
been performed by all the executive Directors, including Madam Ng Sing
Mui, the chairperson of the Company (the “Chairperson”) and an
executive Director, collectively. The Board considered that this has the
advantages of allowing contributions from all executive Directors with
different expertise and will review the current situation from time to time
and shall make necessary arrangements when the Board considers
appropriate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted on 13 March 2017 a board diversity policy (“Board
Diversity Policy”). The Company continuously seeks to enhance the
effectiveness of its Board by maintaining the highest standards of
corporate governance and recognizing and embracing the benefits of
diversity in the boardroom. The Company sees diversity as a wide
concept and believes that a diversity of perspectives can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors, including skills, regional
and industry experience, cultural and educational background, race, age,
gender and other qualities etc. In forming its perspectives on diversity,
the Company will also take into account factors based on its own
business model and specific needs and disclose the rationale for the
factors it uses for such purpose from time to time. The Board will give
adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when it identifies
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board and will
review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis and make such
revisions as may be required to ensure its continuing effectiveness.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board intends to hold Board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than 14 days
will be given for all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and propose matters to be discussed in the
meeting agenda.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
generally be given. The agenda and accompanying documents are
dispatched to the Directors or Board committee members at least 3 days
before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review the
documents and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
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When Directors or Board committee members are unable to attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the Chairperson prior to the
meeting. Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings
will be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by
the Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting
is held.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board held 4 Board meetings
and passed resolutions by way of written resolutions. The attendance
record of each Directors is set out in the table on page 27 of this annual
report.

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 March 2021, 1 general meeting of the
Company, being the 2020 annual general meeting held on 11 August
2020 (the “2020 AGM”), was held. The attendance record of each
Directors is set out in the table on page 27 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 21 February 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chung Koon Yan, Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Ma
Kwok Keung and Mr. Chan Chun Sing with Mr. Chung Koon Yan being
the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Audit Committee are to
review, in draft form, the annual report, interim report and accounts, and
to provide advice and comments to the Board. In this regard, members
of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board, the senior management
and auditor. The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer (if any) or auditor. Members of the
Audit Committee are also responsible for reviewing the Group’s financial
reporting process, internal control and risk management systems.
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The corporate governance functions are also performed by the Audit
Committee. The corporate governance functions are to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance to
comply with the CG Code and make recommendations to the Board, to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management, to develop, review and monitor the
code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors, and to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2021. The attendance record of each members of the Audit Committee
at the above meetings is set out in the table on page 27 of this annual
report. In addition, the Audit Committee also dealt with matters by way of
circulation of written resolutions during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2021,
performed the following works:

the Audit Committee had

—  reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the engagement
of the Company’s auditor in respect of the audit of financial
statements of the Group and perform agree-upon procedures for
the interim and annual results announcement;

—  discussed with the Company’s auditor the audit planning;

— reviewed the interim and annual financial statements and the
related results announcement, documents and other matters or
issues raised by the Company’s auditor and made recommendation
to the Board the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor;

—  reviewed and made recommendation to the Board the engagement
of external consultants in respect of the provision of enterprise risk
assessment service and internal control review service;

— discussed and confirmed with the management the effectiveness of
the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems, reviewed the risk management and
internal control systems and made recommendation to the Board;
and

—  reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code during the
year ended 31 March 2020 and corporate governance related
matters.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and is of the opinion that
such consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules, other applicable legal
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been made.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen and Mr. Chung Koon Yan
and one executive Director, namely Ms. Sze Tan Nei with Mr. Yuen Ching
Bor Stephen being the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policies
and structure of the remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and to set up a formal and transparent procedure for
determination of such remuneration policies.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach under code
provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the
Board on remuneration packages of the Directors and the members of
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended 31
March 2021. The attendance record of each members of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 27 of this annual
report. In addition, the Remuneration Committee also dealt with matter
by way of circulation of written resolutions during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Remuneration Committee
performed the following works:

— discussed and reviewed the existing policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management; and

— made recommendations to the Board on an one-off anti-epidemic
allowance offered to the staff of the Group, including executive
Directors and senior management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 21 February
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.
The Nomination Committee comprises one executive Director, namely
Madam Ng Sing Mui and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen, Mr. Ma Kwok Keung and Mr. Wong
Yat Sum with Madam Ng Sing Mui being the chairperson of the
Nomination Committee.

Amongst other things, the primary duties of the Nomination Committee
are to make recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors
and succession planning for the Directors. In assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee will take into account various
aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without
undue disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as
well as plans in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary),
including periodical review of such plans. The appointment of a new
Director (to be an additional Director or fill a casual vacancy as and when
it arises) or any re-appointment of Directors is a matter for decision by
the Board upon the recommendation of the proposed candidate by the
Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his or her ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well
as the effective carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in
particular, are set out as follows:

(@  participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment
on issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conducts;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
(c) serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and

the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-
executive Director) and other relevant Board committees, if invited;
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(d)  bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committee on which he or she serves the
benefit of his or her skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and participation in
the Board/committee meetings;

(e) scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

() ensuring the committees on which he or she serves to perform their
powers and functions conferred on them by the Board; and

(@ conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation
or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive Director, his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may be made by the
Stock Exchange from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of the
candidate’s education, qualifications and experience shall also be
evaluated to consider whether he or she has the appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise for
filing the office of an independent non-executive Director with such
qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the year ended 31
March 2021 at which the members of the Nomination Committee
reviewed the Board’s structure, size, composition and diversity, assessed
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and made
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of retiring Directors at
the 2020 AGM. The attendance record of each members of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 27 of this annual
report.
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ATTENDANCE AT BOARD MEETINGS, THE

BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND
GENERAL MEETING

Attendance of each Directors at all the Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and general meeting held during the year ended 31 March

2021 is set out as follows:

Board
Name of Director Meetings

B9
E=pE =f
Executive Directors
HITES
Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) 4/4
REMHL LT (EE) 4/4
Ms. Sze Tan Nei 4/4
B S} e 22 & 4/4
Mr. Ang Ming Wah 4/4
HERES A 4/4
Mr. Sze Wai Lun 4/4
W12 fm o5t A& 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors
BIYFHITES
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen 4/4
RIE R L 4/4
Mr. Chung Koon Yan 4/4
BIE A A 4/4
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung 4/4
HE LA 4/4
Mr. Wong Yat Sum 4/4
'E-OEAE 4/4
Mr. Chan Chun Sing 4/4
PR R 2 % A 4/4

Audit
Committee
Meetings
EREEE
=f

N/A

-
&
il

N/A
i F
N/A
A iE H
N/A
T iE H

3/3
3/3

3/3
3/3

3/3
3/3

N/A
iE A
3/3
3/3

HEEEEEeE EEE2Z8
BERURBRRAREZER

ZESHEREE2021F3A31BILEFE
RO EEESESR E=2ZEEY
FEABRRERREZ2ERHEIOT

Nomination Remuneration
Committee Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
REEEE YMHZES
g5 =] BRAE
11 N/A 1M1
11 T A 1/1
N/A 1Al i7al
A 11 1/1
N/A N/A 1/1
TE A A3 A 1/1
N/A N/A 1/1
A 3 1/1
11 1M1 i7al
11 i7al i7al
N/A i7al 1M1
TEMA 1/1 1/1
11 N/A i7al
i7a T A 1/1
11 N/A 1/1
11 T A 1/1
N/A N/A 1/1
A A3 A 1/1
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. All
Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”) and have exercised their duties with care,
skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group. The
Company continuously updates the Directors on the latest developments
regarding the GEM Listing Rules or the Listing Rules* and other
applicable regulatory and statutory requirements from time to time to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. The Company also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development
and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31
March 2021 to the Company. Training record of each Director received
for the year ended 31 March 2021 is summarised below:

Name of Director

EEpE

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson) REWZ LT (EE)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei 5} e 22 &=

Mr. Ang Ming Wah BRI K A4

Mr. Sze Wai Lun M2 | % A&

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen RBFKEAE

Mr. Chung Koon Yan EIEE LS

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung 5ok S A&

Mr. Wong Yat Sum =—LSEAE

Mr. Chan Chun Sing [ e

Notes:

A attending seminars and/or conference and/or forums on subjects relating to
directors’ duties and corporate governance

B reading newspaper, journals and updates as regards legal and regulatory
changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EMOLUMENTS

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of the

EEREREEBN T

REZE2021F3A3IHILFE AR aEH

Company for the year ended 31 March 2021, by band is set out below: ERE(BREF)NFIRFHESEEHT
UM

Number of

Remuneration Band individual

N & A

Nil = -

HK$1 to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000

178 70 2= 1,000,000 7T

1,000,001 7 7T & 1,500,000 7% 7T
1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T
2,000,001 7% 7T = 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 7% 7T 2 3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 7% 7T 2 3,500,000 7T
3,500,001 7% 7T & 4,000,000 7T
4,000,001 7% 7T & 4,500,000 7T

11

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other
than an annual general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general
meeting.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Save for the procedures for the Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting, there are no provisions allowing Shareholders to
propose new resolutions at the general meetings under the articles of
association of the Company or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, as amended, modified and supplemented. Shareholders may
follow the procedures set out above to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for any business specified in such written requisition. The written
requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and must be signed by
the relevant Shareholder(s) and deposited to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Suite 2702, 27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8
Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholder(s) may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the company secretary of the Company by post
to Suite 2702, 27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8 Yeung Uk Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong, or via email at the contact
information as provided on the website of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the articles of association of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to date version of the
articles of association of the Company is available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and oversees such systems on an ongoing
basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of these systems of the
Group is conducted at least annually. The scope of such review covers
all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls. The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
designed to managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and
management has provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee and
the Board on the effectiveness of these systems for the year ended 31
March 2021.

Main Features of the Risk Management System

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for the
long-term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group’s risk
management structure and the major responsibilities of each role of the
structure are summarized below:
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Role Major Responsibilities At FEBRE

Board — determines the business strategies and EE & - TEAREE 7 EEERE R

Audit Committee

objectives of the Group, and evaluates and
determines the nature and extent of the risks it
is wiling to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives;

oversees management in the design,
implement and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems;

oversees the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis
and ensures the Company establishes and
maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems;

reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems at
least annually, and such review should cover
all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls;

reviews the emerging risks of the Group
annually, and the risk management and the
internal controls in place to address those
risks;

discusses the risk management and internal
control systems with management of the
Group to ensure that the management of the
Group has performed its duty to have an
effective system. The discussion should
include the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function and
to rectify any weaknesses that may be
revealed from time to time;

considers major investigation findings on risk
management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative
and the Group’s management’s response to
these findings;
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Role Major Responsibilities

Management —

Risk Owners —

designs, implements and ongoing assesses
the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems;

gives prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on risk management and internal
control matters as delegated by the Board, on
Audit Committee’s initiative or raised by the
external consultant(s);

provides confirmation to the Board and the
Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems;

ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk is
managed appropriately; and

responsible for, or oversight of, activities to
manage each identified risk.

In addition, the Company engaged an external consultant to conduct a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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Main Features of the Internal Control System

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations. The components of the framework are shown as

follow:
Control —

Environment

Risk Assessment —

Control Activities

Information and —
Communication

Monitoring —

a set of standards, processes and structures
that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

a dynamic and iterative process for identifying
and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed.

actions established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the achievement
of objectives are carried out.

internal and external communication to
provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each components of
internal control is present and functioning.

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage

Significant Risks

|dentification —

Evaluation —

Management —

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives.

analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication with the Board in respect of
the risks and on-going monitor the residual
risks.
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Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are submitted
to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, had performed a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including, but not
limited to, (i) the changes, in the nature and extent of significant risks and
the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment, (i) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems, (iii) the extent and
frequency of communication of monitoring results to the Audit Committee
and the Board which enables them to assess control of the Company
and the effectiveness of risk management, (iv) significant control failings
or weaknesses that have been identified, and (v) the effectiveness of the
Company’s processes for financial reporting and GEM Listing Rules or
Listing Rules* compliance, and considered that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate for the year ended
31 March 2021. No significant areas of concern that might affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group were identified. The scope of such review covers
the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions and their attitude
against internal control of the Group. The Board will continue to work
with the management to discuss and follow-up on the status of
remediation of the internal control weaknesses and to monitor the risks of
the Group in the coming years.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling
and Dissemination of Inside Information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness of
its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements an inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have
been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

- access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.

- transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected.

- prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area.
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- code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any
reference to them would not be linked to the projects themselves to
minimize possibilities of unintentional leakage.

- trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully
conversant with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with
reasonable care.

- confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

- officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate internal
audit department, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform independent review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at
least annually the need for an internal audit department.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-17), to provide
compliance and full range of company secretarial services to the Group
in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing regulatory
environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie (“Ms. Chan”), the representative of Uni-1, has
been appointed as the company secretary with effect from 13 June
2016. Her primary corporate contact person at the Company is Ms. Sze
Tan Nei, an executive Director.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, Ms. Chan has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE EERGSABECRE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of AAFTCHEEELSABEem Y 2
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers. RERTEEREE 2 RIRTHE -

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION % B D I &

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the total fees in respect of audit and ~ Z Z=2021E3 831 B IFE[E - St AN A B X 2
non-audit services provided by BDO Limited, the auditor of the Company, & E T ZEZ @ MERA AR A 512

are set out as follows: HEEFT MIEETRE 2 ABEREHINAT :
Fee paid/
Services rendered payable
g1t/
PR 3% 5| Bl EASER
HK$'000
FET
Audit services: BT AR
— Annual audit for the year ended 31 March 2021 — HE021F3A3MBITFEZFEEZ 600
Non-audit services: TR
— Perform agree-upon procedures for interim — P HEERNER TR EREF
results announcement 80
— Other services in respect of the transfer of listing — BB HBBIGEMEE TR T2
from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange ~ E 1th iR %5 90
Total 45t 770
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements of the Group and other financial disclosures required under
the GEM Listing Rules or the Listing Rules* and the Company’s
management will provide information and explanation to the Board to
enable it to make informed assessments of the financial and other
decisions.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in respect of its reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021 is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages
97 to 102 of this annual report.

* The GEM Listing Rules was applicable to the Company prior to the transfer of
listing of the Shares from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 11
June 2020 (the “Transfer of Listing”). Immediately after the Transfer of Listing, the
Listing Rules shall be applicable to the Company.
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1.

ABOUT THE REPORT

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
published by the Company presents the efforts and achievements
made in sustainability and social responsibility by the Group. The
ESG Report details the performance of the Group in carrying out
the environmental and social policies and fulfilling the principle of
sustainable development.

1.1

1.2

Scope of the Report

The ESG Report covers the environmental and social
performance of the Group’s business for the period between
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 (the “Year”). The
environmental key performance indicators (“KP!I”) as disclosed
in the ESG Report are based on the performance of the
principal office, the warehouse and the fleet vehicles of the
Group for the Year. For details of corporate governance,
please refer to the corporate governance report on pages 18
to 38 of this annual report.

Reporting Standard

The ESG Report was prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (“ESG
Reporting Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and
has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions of the
ESG Reporting Guide.
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1.3

1.4

1.5

&

Reporting Principles

Quantitative environmental and social KPIs are disclosed in
the ESG Report so that stakeholders are able to have a
comprehensive understanding of the Group’s ESG
performance. Information of the standards, methodologies,
references and source of key emission and conversion factors
used on these KPls are stated wherever appropriate. To
enhance and maintain the comparability of the ESG Report
between years, the Group adopts consistent reporting and
calculation methodologies as far as practicable. In case of
any changes in methodologies and specific standards,
explanation has been provided in corresponding sections to
facilitate information interpretation.

Stakeholder Engagement

The engagement of our employees from different departments
of the Group helps us recognize our sustainability
performance. The diligently collected and carefully analyzed
data underscores not only the Group’s sustainable initiatives
for the Year, but also the Group’s short-term and long-term
sustainability strategy. The Group will continue to increase the
involvement of stakeholders via constructive conversation
with a view to charting a course for long term prosperity.

Information and Feedbacks

Your opinions are highly valued. If you have any queries or
suggestions, please feel free to contact the Company:

Email: ir@winsongrouphk.com

Address: Suite 2702, 27th Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower,
No. 8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong
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GREEN MANAGEMENT

As a business providing environmental hygiene and related
services, it is the Group’s target to keep the city clean and green.
The Group is aware of the impacts on the natural environment
caused by its businesses so we strive to protect our environment
during our operation and service provision. We are dedicated to
adopting an effective environmental management system, as well
as carrying out an assortment of measures with respect to emission
control, waste management and resources conservation in an effort
to help shape a green city.

2.1 Environmental Management System

To achieve green management, the Group has adopted an
environmental management system and is certified to ISO
14001. The Environmental Protection Committee (“EPC”),
which serves to oversee the environmental management of
the Group and maintain close collaborations with green
groups and chambers of commerce, continues to ensure that
the management system operates effectively while promoting
sustainable development within the Group. Under the
guidance of EPC, potential negative environmental impacts
during operation are continuously assessed so that
corresponding solutions can be implemented.

The Group fully understands that the provision of
environmental hygiene and related services has direct
impacts to the environment, thus the environmental
management system was designed to minimize possible
impacts arisen from air emission, water discharge and waste
disposal. We are also able to implement environmentally-
friendly measures for cutting down emission and resources
consumption with the environmental management system.
The system also helps to minimize impacts of our services
which allow our clients, when using our services, to reduce
their environmental impacts. For instance, we advocate the
use of cleaning procedures and equipment with lower level of
harmful chemicals in detergent and pesticides to avoid
detrimental impacts on the environment, and we also carry
out waste sorting for our clients for recycling.
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2.2

As part of the comprehensive management system, training
sessions such as introduction to environmental ordinances
pertained to wastewater discharge and energy saving
measures for office, as well as courses for ISO 14001
Environmental Management System (EMS) and training on
related law and regulation updates were provided to our
employees during the Year.

The Group has received the Hong Kong Green Organisation
certification issued by the Environmental Campaign
Committee during the Year for its excellence in green
management, acting as recognition on our efforts and
commitments to the environment.

Wastewater and Air Emission

Detergents are frequently used during the provision of our
hygiene services, which are therefore the major source of
wastewater discharge of the Group. By sticking to local laws
and regulations such as Water Pollution Control Ordinance
and Waterworks Ordinance, wastewater generated by our
services is discharged into the municipal sewage system. Our
on-site employees are required to follow standard water
pollution control procedures such as the dilution of
wastewater before discharge in a bid to minimize relevant
impacts.

In regard to air emission, our fleet vehicles, which include
trucks and private cars owned by the Group to support its
environmental hygiene and related services, are the main
source of air emission of the Group. The Group strictly
complies with relevant laws and regulations such as Air
Pollution Control Ordinance and Ozone Layer Protection
Ordinance for proper emission management.
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Air pollutants emission (for the year ended 31 March 2021
and 31 March 2020):

75 {55 A W) BE R 2 (E 22021
F£3A31H &2020E3A31H 1F
F[E):

2021 2020

Types (Note i) & (P aEi) 20215 20204

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) (kg) RENO) (T5) 1,447 1,345

Sulphur oxides (SO,) (kg) (Note ii) Hma (SO, (T5z) (M 3Eii) 1.93 1.75

Particulate Matter (PM) (kg) BOF AL (PV) (F72) 94 86

Notes: M sE -

0] The fleet vehicle emissions are calculated based on the “Reporting 0] BERERERE TR EB AT
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock BHRCORE BB A NI IEE R IE
Exchange. S|t & o

(ii) The data is rounded to 2 decimal places for better comparisons. (ii) BRI LR BIEAERERE

BT o
Apart from air pollutants, greenhouse gas is another major BRERTEMIN BEREAEK

type of air emission of the Group. Our fleet vehicles release
not only pollutants, but also greenhouse gases such as
carbon dioxide (CO,), methane (CH,) and nitrous oxide (N,O).
Besides, the operation of our offices will also directly and
indirectly emit greenhouse gas through the use of electricity
and disposal of paper to landfill.

Greenhouse gas emission (for the year ended 31 March 2021
and 31 March 2020):

=8

Indicators

SEERFERNS —TBEE-
BPIRE B E W ME RS R
¥ IREE RN Z | AL B (CO,) ~ B
Bt (CHy) 2 &AL T2 B(NO) & =
R U HPIM BRI EE
NEeEERLEEBBENEAR
BEARERBEBUR ERAE

BERENE (HE2021F3A4
31 B M2020FE3A31BIEFEE):

RERBHNEE
(-—&ftmES

Total greenhouse gas emissions
(tonnes CO,e)
Direct emissions (Scope 1) (Note i)
Energy indirect emissions (Scope 2) (Note ii)  8& /R & HE i (81 2)
(B 5%ii)
Hh FE = B (S5 & 3)
(B =)
BRERERBYMESE
(& rixEE
WamB&BT)

Other indirect emissions (Scope 3) (Note iii)

Total greenhouse gas emission per revenue
(tonnes CO,e/million Hong Kong dollars of
revenue)

B (s E ) (D)

2021 2020
202145 20204
366 342
333 301

25 33

8 8

0.69 0.60
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2.3

Notes:

0] Data includes greenhouse gas emission derived from fuel
combustion of the Group’s vehicles. The emission is calculated
based on the “Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
published by the Stock Exchange.

(ii) Data includes greenhouse gas emission derived from the use of
purchased electricity in the Group’s principal office and warehouse.
The emission factor is provided by China Light & Power Co., Ltd.
annually.

(iii) Data includes greenhouse gas emission derived from disposal of
paper to landfills. The emission is calculated based on the “Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock
Exchange.

Recognizing the impacts of greenhouse gases on global
warming and climate change, the Group has been committed
to controlling its carbon footprint through a number of
measures including the reduction of paper consumption and
energy conservation (For details, please refer to the
paragraphs headed “Waste Management” and “Energy and
Water Conservation” below).

Waste Management

In addition to wastewater and air emission, proper waste
management is also a core part of our green management.
Office operation is always essential in supporting the main
business of the Group, which will generate both hazardous
and non-hazardous waste. During the Year, the non-
hazardous waste as disposed of from our principal office and
warehouse consisted mainly of paper and daily garbage
discarded by staff, while hazardous waste included toner
cartridges. As the Group was not involved in product
manufacturing and processing, no packaging materials were
used and no waste associated with packaging was generated
during the Year.
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Non-hazardous waste disposal (for the year ended 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020):

Indicators b

EmErYiesE () (D
BEMAEETIELN
mEEYME/ZAN)

Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes) (Note i)
Non-hazardous waste per office staff
(tonnes/person)

Note:

0] Emission data relating to non-hazardous waste was based on the
daily estimated volume of general waste in office and the volume-
to-weight conversion factors provided by the United States
Environmental Protection Agency.

Hazardous waste disposal (for the year ended 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020):

Indicators BE

Total hazardous waste (kg) (Note i)
Hazardous waste per office staff (kg/person) G Z it A=E TE A
BEED (TR EBAN)

Note:

0] Emission data relating to hazardous waste was based on the
actual weight of used toner cartridges. The data for the year ended
31 March 2020 included waste battery, in addition to used toner
cartridges.

To appropriately handle the waste generated, the Group
strictly conforms to the laws and regulations regarding waste
management such as the Waste Disposal Ordinance, and
works with a qualified waste collection company so as to
ensure both the non-hazardous and hazardous waste are
treated properly. In an effort to cut down on waste, we
encourage our office staff to use reusable and recyclable
appliances such as bottles, cups, chinaware, rechargeable
batteries and other equipment. Besides, we advocate the use
of environmentally-friendly materials where appropriate, for
instance, to print internal documents with recycled paper. For
toner cartridges, all used cartridges are collected
independently by the suppliers for recycling to avoid harmful
impacts and at the same time reduce waste.
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Paper saving and recycling plays a vital role not only in waste
reduction, but also in the alleviation of global warming. The
Group implements the policy of double-sided printing and
copying and disseminates information by electronic means
whenever possible to reduce the consumption of paper.
Recycling bins are also available for staff to recycle used
paper and paper products. We aim to lower the amount of
waste discarded to landfill and hence reduce carbon
emission.

2.4 Energy and Water Conservation

1

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Energy and water conservation is a key element of our
environmental management system as the use of energy and
water is unavoidable in office operation. During the Year, the
burning of fuels for vehicles and the use of electricity were the
major sources of energy consumption of the Group, which
resulted in a total energy consumption' of 1,352 MWh (2020:
1,176 MWh), while the average consumption per million Hong
Kong dollars of revenue was 2.55 MWh (2020: 2.07 MWh).

Energy Consumption by Types

5%

95%

The total energy consumption is calculated based on the actual usage of
vehicle fuels and purchased electricity with reference to the “Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by the Stock Exchange.

KIEZERERBRDF

24

7 2021
2020

B 49 Ko 131 W ) AR A oR T 2 SR A
BEMREEERER THERD
BRER(CEBRIER - NEBEHTT
EEITEIRENONBEK L&A
BEUNEFTHABESE BRI
Ao AP TR AR B TR = AR A
(Bl 4 A 38 B AR oR B AR B am o 3R AP
B PR K 3 B 0 4 3 M IH R O R
MBE MR DB PERE -

B4 BE TR I K B IR

PREELEETARESFERER
RKER - BB K R K&
BFERMRREEERANBRR
Bioe MAFE  BHUREBERER
BENFERAAEBEEREREN
TERR EEERERAE A
1,352 9K L B (20204F : 1,176 K R
B) mMBAEEBETREMNEY
H R 2 A2.55JK B B (20204F ¢
2.07JKELBE) o

BREHETHEFER

Use of vehicles

EHEA

B 2021
2020

Electricity usage

EHEH

Unit: MWh
B KR

BEIROH FE A B Y 2 MR B AT T B M CGR
FERRAEREREREIDRE TER
HRINBENERBETE -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE -HEREGHS

In consideration of the potential impacts of energy
consumption to the environment, the Group has shouldered
the burden of energy conservation and implemented energy-
saving measures. As part of our many energy-saving
initiatives, we require the temperature of our office to be
maintained at an energy-efficient level, which is set at 25.5°C,
and the light and computers to be switched off when rooms
are not in use. The Group’s subsidiary has also signed the
“Energy Saving Charter on No Incandescent Light Bulbs (ILB)”
to abandon the use of ILB and to install energy-saving
fluorescent tubes. To reduce fleet emissions and optimize the
efficiency of fuel consumption for vehicles, checkups and
maintenance are regularly performed in an attempt to
maintain the optimal condition of our vehicles. By practically
improving energy efficiency and reducing consumption, we
strive to minimize our carbon footprint in office operation.

As water is a precious natural resource, the Group believes
that everyone shares the responsibility to adopt a sustainable
use of water resources. Therefore, we encourage our office
staff to use water only when justified. We also work to prevent
wastage of water by installing flow restrictors and spray
nozzles wherever possible, reminding employees to turn off
the faucet tightly and fix dripping taps immediately once
discovered. Currently, the Group does not have access to
water consumption data in the principal office since water
supply and discharge are managed by the management
company of the property in which the office is located.

To further promote green office operation, the Group
encourages our staff to have potted plants at office for
greening the environment as well as improving indoor air
quality. Besides, the Group rents lush indoor plants and place
them in the public office areas with the aim of creating a
healthier workplace for everyone.
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3. OUR PEOPLE

Human resources are the foundation hence the most valuable asset
of the Group, thus building a reliable, efficient and productive team
is of paramount importance. We have established a comprehensive
human resources policy, taking care of the employment,
remuneration, development as well as the rights and welfare of our
employees.

3.1 Employment

The Group highly focuses on recruiting talents as it is our
conviction that employing suitable persons is of ultimate
importance to the business’s thriving development. We
strictly abide by local labor laws and regulations regarding
compensation, benefits, dismissal, working hours and rest
period, such as the Employment Ordinance and Employees’
Compensation Ordinance. Throughout the whole recruitment
process, a non-discrimination approach is put in place that
the Group also employs people with disabilities without any
discrimination (For details, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Contribution to the Community” below).

Besides, the Group stringently prohibits the employment of
child labour through identity and age verification such as ID
card check. To avoid forced labour, employees are required
to enter into the labour contract clearly stating their duties
and responsibilities before the official commencement of
work. Overtime work is on a voluntary basis to further prevent
forced labour and overtime pay will be made in accordance
with relevant laws and regulations. The Group would
immediately stop his/her work and look into the reasons once
discovering any employment of child labour. Meanwhile, we
would review the current practices and policies to avoid the
occurrence of similar cases of child and forced labour.
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As at 31 March 2021, the Group has employed in total 2,077 H E20214F3A31H  KNEBEE
employees. The total workforce (for the year ended 31 March A& #£2,077% & B - & £2021
2021 and 31 March 2020) is summarized below: F3HA31H &2020F3 A31H 1

FEMEEAAZRBMIT

2021 2020
Indicators (Note i) B (M aED 20214 2020%F

Total number and percentage (%) BABKE DL %)
By Gender BRI 8 D
Male B 575 (28%) 560 (28%)
Female el 1,502 (72%) 1,407 (72%)
By Age Group (Note i) RERAARIE o (M sEi)
Below 30 303 A T 33 (1%) —
30-50 30-507% 455 (22%) —
Above 50 505% A £ 1,589 (77%) —
By Employment Type LEFBELE S
Permanent KH 2,032 (98%) 1,946 (99%)
Temporary B B 45 (2%) 21 (1%)
Notes: B &E
(i) All employees worked in Hong Kong during the Year. 0] REAFEFE FIBERBEHYRES
Z1E -
(i) The Group began to disclose the employment data by age group (i AEBURANFERBIZFRHRAR
starting from the Year. B EBUR -

%
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3.2

3.3

Welfare and Benefits

The Group is responsible to assure all our staff of the
statutory rights and welfare and is pleased to provide
employees with extra benefits so that they can achieve
maximum satisfaction from working in the Group. We offer
our employees a competitive remuneration package that
discretionary bonus is provided based on individual
performance and the Group’s financial performance. Apart
from statutory holidays, our employees can also enjoy
different types of leave, including annual leave, sick leave,
casual leave, compassionate leave and maternity leave. As an
appreciation for the contribution and dedication of long-
serving employees, long service award will be presented.

The Group believes that two-way communication is essential
to employee engagement, which brings higher job
satisfaction, higher productivity, and lower turnover rate. The
Staff Welfare Committee was thereby set up to provide
proper channels for quality communication between
employees and management. Furthermore, the introduction
of casual wear day every Friday and birthday leave also
represents the consistent endeavor by the committee in
providing a friendly workplace.

Career Development

In order to maintain the competitiveness of our employees
and establish an excellent team, we review our employees’
performance regularly and provide recommendations on their
training needs and career development during performance
appraisals. Promotion opportunities are provided so that
employees can find their career paths within the Group.
Promotion within the Group is executed on a fair and open
basis that employees’ character, ability and performance at
work are taken into consideration, while any form of
discrimination on grounds of gender, race, skin colour, age,
religion and nationality are intolerable.
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3.4 BB AT RAAESE

3.4 Nurturing Talent and Succession Planning

To enrich our employees’ experience and industry knowledge,
the Group provides orientation and internal training to
employees in a targeted, systematic and forward-looking
approach. During the Year, new employees received
orientation training while other employees received regular
general business operation training. Furthermore, the Group
also provided training and workshops held by internal and
external parties on different topics such as media handling,
anti-corruption, information technology system application,
environmental protection and ISO implementation to
employees from different departments.

In addition, to further strengthen employees’ skills and enrich
their knowledge, employees are encouraged to join external
training that is subsidized by the Group. We put specific
attention to workplace safety training where we highly
recommend a number of courses organized by professional
bodies such as the Occupational Safety and Health Council
and the Occupational Safety and Health Centre of the Labour
Department to employees. These training sessions include
occupational safety topics such as manual lifting and handling
training, environmental hygiene safety and first-aid knowledge
in workplace. Employees are also encouraged to attend
external talks and seminars to enrich their knowledge in
discharging their duties.
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4. OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Health and safety issues in the workplace are risks that could
hinder the development of a business. On the contrary, a safe and
healthy workplace not only protects the well-being of employees, it
also enhances productivity and competitiveness. Thus, the Group
sees occupational safety and employees’ health as an integral part
of its sustainable development and always puts priority on the
protection for employees’ health and safety.

4.1 Safety Management System

A comprehensive work safety management and supervision
system is vital for enhancing safety performance. We strictly
comply with local laws and regulations regarding occupational
health and safety, such as the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance, and Factories and Industrial Undertakings
(Dangerous Substances) Regulations, when implementing our
safety management. Our safety management system is
certified to the Occupational Health and Safety Assessment
Series (OHSAS) 18001 and ISO 45001, both are
internationally-recognized standards regarding occupational
health and safety systems within organizations. The Safety
Committee, which oversees the safety management of the
whole Group, is involved in promoting occupational health
and workplace safety to our employees and conducting
periodic review on workplace safety and occupational health
measures. Externally, the Group’s subsidiaries are also
members of the Green Cross Group organized by the
Occupational Safety and Health Council.
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4.2

4.3

&

Safe and Healthy Workplace

The Group has formulated a full set of guidelines and
procedures for safety training, operation inspection and risk
assessment. We provide personal protective equipment to
our employees whenever necessary, and at the same time
offer safety briefing and training to raise their awareness of
workplace safety and health. Workplace safety inspection is
conducted regularly to identify the hazards associated with
activities of different working procedures and to evaluate the
risks associated with the hazards identified. In response to
the risk evaluation result, preventive and protective measures
are implemented. In order to minimize the occupational health
and safety risk, some employees are required to obtain
relevant certificates through completing courses such as
work at height safety training course so that they are
knowledgeable about the job-related protective measures.

Accident Handling Scheme

Our employees are subject to work-related accidents and
injuries given the nature of our service despite protective
measures being implemented. The Group has formulated a
detailed accident analysis and investigation procedures. In
case there is work-related accident, employees should report
to their supervisors immediately. We would then conduct a
detailed analysis for the cause of injuries and implement
measures to improve or rectify the issues. We continuously
monitor the improvement and preventive measures to
minimize the possibility of accidents.
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4.4 Combating COVID-19

In response to the COVID-19 epidemic, the Group has
established an emergency plan to prevent epidemics while
working at clients’ premises according to the three levels of
emergency measures proposed by the government. We
cleaned and sanitized all public facilities and public areas, for
instance, lifts, lobbies and receptions, of the properties with
diluted bleach at least once per day. We also strengthened
the cleaning for elderly homes, and set up collection bins
specifically for masks disposal, in order to maintain a hygienic
environment. Besides, the Group has formulated guidelines
for employees entering infected areas to ensure their personal
health and safety. All staff are required to put on personal
protective equipment, including masks, safety goggles,
protective clothing and gloves, before entering the infected
areas. Procedures of putting on and discarding the protective
equipment are also provided to employees in order to ensure
environmental and personal safety.

5. OUTSTANDING OPERATION

As a high-end service provider, quality, reliability and safety of our
service are the keys to our success. The Group never spares itself
in the pursuit of excellence in its operations and service through the
management of its supply chain, service quality and the provision of
customer services.

5.1 Supply Chain Management

The Group pays careful attention to the management of the
entire supply chain by sticking to the commitment of
sustainable development. During supplier and sub-contractor
selection, a balanced judgment is made by considering a
plenty of factors, including their environmental performance.
Emphasis is laid especially on the aspects of environmental
protection, quality as well as health and safety, where
suppliers with certification of ISO 14001, ISO 9001, OHSAS
18001 or other accreditation will be given preference during
selection.
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5.2

After supplier selection, we continuously evaluate our
suppliers and sub-contractors in regard to raw materials and
service quality, reliability, environmental performance and
occupational health and safety as well as timely delivery to
minimize the relevant risk. We also have green procurement
guidelines which take green purchasing principles into
consideration. Besides, the usage of material is constantly
evaluated to avoid overstocking and squandering resources.

During the Year, all suppliers were governed by the
abovementioned supplier management procedures.

Service Quality

Service quality is one of our major concerns as we am at
providing the best quality service to our clients. The Group
places great emphasis on quality control and our quality
management system has been certified to ISO 9001. We
have set formal procedures for quality checks where
employees are sent to check the quality of service performed
on-site regularly, including services delivered by both the
Group’s employees and third-party service providers. We
also visit our clients to conduct client reviews and to record
occasions of substandard performance for follow-up actions.

The Group is also committed to protecting the health and
safety of our clients. For example, Winson Professional Pest
Control Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company
which provides pest management services, is required to use
pesticides registered under the Pesticides Ordinance. This is
to eradicate harmful pests while taking into account the basic
principles of public health and environmental protection.
During the year, the Group has strived to provide preferential
appointment to enterprises which implemented effective
safety management system and passed Occupational Safety
and Health Council’s stringent safety audit when choosing
third-party service providers.
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5.3

54

Client Services

The Group is devoted to achieving the highest customer
satisfaction by providing professional and client-oriented
service. To understand clients’ needs, we conduct site
assessment and communicate with clients before service
provision. Our management will hold regular meetings with
on-site employees to review operations in various aspects so
as to ensure that clients’ expectations can be met. Clients’
feedback on service quality, environmental and workplace
safety performance and application of material and tools is
also collected as a source for making corresponding
improvement. In response to client complaints, we will
investigate the root cause and carry out remedial and
preventive actions promptly according to the client complaint
handling procedures set by the Group.

Advertising and Information Security

With regard to advertising, the Group has designated
specialized employees to monitor notices, news and
information in the media in connection with tenders relating to
environmental hygiene and related services and airline
catering support services. We strive to ensure relevant local
laws and regulations are strictly conformed with.

The Group highly values the confidential data of our clients.
We strictly comply with local laws and regulations regarding
privacy matter, such as the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance. We are committed to maintaining transparency,
legitimacy, relevance and accuracy when we handle the
confidential data of our clients. Our office staff is required to
enter into a confidentiality agreement which forbids him/her to
disclose confidential or proprietary information outside the
Group, either during or after employment, without the
Group’s authorization. Besides, we endeavor to protect the
IT system from virus contamination, cyber attack and leakage
of confidential information by implementing the IT security
policy that specifies the roles of different parties within the
Group and regulates the access and protection of
information. Training relating to cyber security and relevant
risk management would be provided to our employees from
time to time to enhance their awareness of cyber security.
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5.5 Anti-corruption

In order to maintain the Group’s integrity and justice, we
strictly comply with the laws and regulations regarding
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering, such as the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. To maintain high standards
of corporate governance, we fulfill our commitment through
abiding by anti-corruption policies and guidelines, such as
those related to acceptance of gifts and conflicts of interest.
Related procedures and guidelines are available in the
employee handbook. Employees can report any irregularities
to the designated personnel and the Group will investigate
the improper behaviors and take corresponding remedial
measures against the irregularities. The Group is not aware of
any breach of laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to any kinds of corrupt
practices during the Year.

CONTRIBUTION TO THE COMMUNITY

The Group has long been putting great effort in creating a
harmonious and inclusive community through various ways. During
the Year, we continued to provide employment opportunities for
people with disabilities to help them integrate into the community.
Based on the disability and expertise, we made appropriate
arrangements of work for the disabled employees. Appropriate
types of support, such as targeted training and emotional
counseling, were always available when required. In order to
promote disabled employees’ integration into the community and
foster social integration of able-bodied and disabled persons, out-
of-work gatherings and counseling sessions are organized in their
spare time and working time.
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As recognition of our persistent care towards people with
disabilities, one of the Group’s subsidiaries was awarded with the
Caring Employer Gold Medal under the “Caring Employer
Commendation Scheme 2020” co-organized by the Kwun Tong
Home Affairs Department and the Hong Kong Federation of
Handicapped Youth.

On the other hand, the Group also supports social service and
education by making charitable donation. During the Year, we
sponsored the outstanding trainee selection of the Hong Kong
College of Technology (“HKCT”), which helped to nurture talent for
the community. The Group has also made a donation to The
Mental Health Association of Hong Kong in order to support its
self-financing residential services.

Moreover, we are a member of “Employers Consultative
Committee” organized by HKCT to provide up-to-date industry
information to our youth. Our social commitment also encompasses
the establishment of the Social Service Committee through which
our employees actively participate in community service and
stimulate a caring and respectful corporate culture. The spirit of
service, as well as the care and love shared by the committee not
only helps to make a difference among the needy, but also helps to
foster a harmonious atmosphere within the community.

Looking into the future, the Group will continue with its efforts in
supporting and empowering the community. It is hoped that long-
term values can be created for society so that the Group can grow
together with society and the people.
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APPENDIX: KPI REPORTING GUIDE

KPI

Description

BRANER #Hil

Environment

RE

A1 Emissions

235 &7

A1.1

A1.2

A1.3

A1.4

A1.5

A1.6

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

PR iR AR S AR R R R B

Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate,
intensity.
BAERBEEMER(MER)EE -

Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate,
intensity.
FMEAEEREYRBRER(MER)EE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity.
FECEREEEYRER (WEREE -

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results
achieved.
IR R ENER LSRR

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
are handled, reduction initiatives and results achieved.
HOAEBEERBETEEDNAEZ RHEELENE
HERFEKR -

Chapters
=4:0]

Water and Air Emission
BEIK K BE RPE IR

Water and Air Emission

B 7K K% & SR HE IR

Waste Management

EEYE IR

Waste Management

BEYE

Waste Management ; Energy
and Water Conservation
FEY)EIE K REIR K&
R

Waste Management

& ¥ B 1R
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427 44

42 10 44

A2 F 44
44 10 46

447 46
4410 46

447 46
4410 47
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447 46
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KPI
BREMIER

Description
i

A2 Use of Resources

&R A
A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total

and intensity.

BREANEDNEER REELERERERTE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.

BEKEREE -

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results

achieved.

R gE IR AT EI R PAEAR o
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results

achieved.

i SKEGE AR BRI BRI RE - A RIRTT A KRR

mat B RATERR -

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

HEmABEMHANEE R (WER) SEEEMG

=
E-°

BRERRARER

A3.1

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken

to manage them.

R XBEHERBERRAERNEX
EEERTENTY -

KIEZRERBBRAF

Chapters
E=4:0]

Energy and Water
Conservation

i 4 82 IR B K B R
Energy and Water
Conservation

B 4 8L IR BK B TR
Energy and Water
Conservation

BRI BE TR S K B IR

Energy and Water
Conservation

B #) BEIR S K B R

Waste Management

Y E E

Environmental Management
System, Wastewater and Air
Emission; Waste
Management; Energy and
Water Conservation
REEEAG  BKKER
PR BEE IR B A RER
KoK &R

Page No.
BER

46 to 47

46 247
46 to 47

46247
46 to 47

46 247
46 to 47

46 47

44 to 46

41 to 47
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KPI

BRAMRER

Social

HE
B1

B2

B3

Description
i

Employment

=%
B1.1

B1.2

Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group

and geographical region.

RMER - BRERLY  FHREMN KRS SNEE AR -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and

geographical region.

BRI FRAERN R REI DM EERKL X -

Health and Safety
BREHEZR

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3

Number and rate of work-related fatalities.

RITEBEMETHAB B E -

Lost days due to work injury.

RAIBERATIERS -

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

Wil RMNBRERAL2EE UEEBRTR

ERTZE-

Development and Training
BRRIE

B3.1

B3.2

The percentage of employees trained by gender and

employee category.

BUuRIREEENESNZIREADL

The average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category.

EHRMEEERE D BREETKIINFHE

2o

Chapters
E=4:0]

Employment

(A

No relevant disclosure for the
Year

AERILEHEREFE

No relevant disclosure for the
Year

AERINEEEREFR

No relevant disclosure for the
Year

AFERWEHEKEER

Safety Management System;
Safe and Healthy Workplace;
Accident Handling Scheme;
Combating COVID-19

LEEEER  ZERER

M TES T B 9NE &l
E  5H COVID-19& 15

No relevant disclosure for the
Year

AERINEAEREFR

No relevant disclosure for the
Year

AFERIWEIEEKEFEE
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iEH
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52% 54

N/A
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KPI

Description

BREAMER #HiL

B4

B5

B6

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Labor Standards
& T g
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labour.
M BB NEEARREE T RAHST -
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.
HME BT ERBE LR ER B B ED PRI e 25
Supply Chain Management

HERERE

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region.

miuwmE D HEEHRE

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers,
number of suppliers where the practices are being

implemented, how they are implemented and monitored.

Wi BRHEEREERNED  WERNTEBEMNNH

EREE ULBABHNRTRERTE-

Product Responsibility
EmEE

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to

recalls for safety and health reasons.

EERCEZXEMERTRLREREEAMARK

MBS -

B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.
FEBRERERBOIRFEE UARELHTE-

B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

W g RENBREREBOED -

B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall

procedures.

M EmE ERTEIRENREKWREF
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy
policies, how they are implemented and monitored.

WIEEEERRERLEBERSE

BIE -

KIEZRERBBRAF

AR ARBEMIT RE

Chapters
E=4:0]

Employment

& 1%

Employment

(=

No relevant disclosure for the
Year

REZIEIGE B FEFE
Supply Chain Management

R E R

No relevant disclosure for the
Year

AERILEEEREEFR

Client Services

PR

No relevant disclosure for the
Year

AERILEEEREFE

Service Quality

R4 &
Advertising and Information

Security
BEREALZ S

Page No.
BER

48 t0 49

48 %49
48 to 49

N/A

I iE A
54 to 55

N/A

-
(et
i

56

56
N/A

TiE A
55

55
56

56
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KPI Description Chapters Page No.
BERENEESE Wit E=4:0] =P/

B7 Anti-corruption

RES
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt Anti-corruption 57
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the cases.
RBERRNHBETASREBREREIEEANESHK RES 57
IMEMHHEE RFRER-
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption 57
procedures, how they are implemented and monitored.
R BEREBREF  ARBERTRERETE RES 57
B8 Community Investment
HERE
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. Contribution to the 57 to 58
Community
EITEREHE - o] 58 4t [& 57%58
B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. No relevant disclosure for the N/A
Year
EEIHEMBAEIR - REZIEIEEREFH 5@

%
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ESREREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Ng Sing Mui (R E&#§) (“Madam Ng”), aged 60, a co-founder of
the Group, has been appointed as a Director since 31 May 2016. Madam
Ng was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017 and
is currently acting as the Chairperson. She is also the chairperson of the
Nomination Committee and holds directorships in all subsidiaries of the
Company. Madam Ng is primarily responsible for the strategic planning,
operation planning and overall management of the Group.

Madam Ng has more than 30 years of experience in the environmental
hygiene services industry in Hong Kong. Building the business from the
ground up since December 1983, Madam Ng has held a leadership role
in the overall management and business development of the Group.

Madam Ng has been a certified associate fellow of the Institute of
Managers and Leaders Australia and New Zealand (formerly known as
Australian Institute of Management) since September 1995 and has
become a fellow member since June 2019. She was also awarded a
Training Certificate on Fire Prevention (Commercial Sector) issued by the
Occupational Safety & Health Council in August 2001.

Madam Ng is the mother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei and Mr. Sze Wai Lun, both
are executive Directors. She is the sole director of Rich Cheer
Development Limited and Sze’s Holdings Limited, both companies have
disclosable interests in the Shares under the provisions in Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).

Ms. Sze Tan Nei (fEfHE) (“Ms. Sze”), aged 41, joined the Group in
February 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Ms.
Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017.
She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and holds
directorships in several subsidiaries of the Company. She is primarily
responsible for strategic planning, operation planning and compliance
control of the Group’s business operation.
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BEENSREERE

Ms. Sze graduated from Queensland University of Technology, Australia,
with a Bachelor of Business (Management) in October 2004. She
completed the Pest Control and Pesticide Safety for Industrial
Undertakings course organised by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2008. Ms. Sze was certified as a Quality Management Systems Auditor
by the International Register of Certificated Auditors, by completing the
Lead Auditor Training Course (in accordance to international standards
ISO 9001:2008 & ISO 19011:2002) co-organised by the Hong Kong
Quality Assurance Agency and International Management Systems
Associates Limited in October 2009. She has also completed the
Environmental Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training
Course for ISO 14001:2004 & ISO 19011:2002 in January 2010, and the
Occupational Health & Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead
Auditor Training Course for BS OHSAS 18001:2007 & ISO 19011:2002
in April 2011. In July 2017, she has completed the Intensive ISO
9001:2015 QMS and ISO 14001:2015 EMS Internal Auditor Training
organised by SGS Hong Kong Limited. Ms. Sze has also awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health and
Safety Management Systems Auditor/Lead Auditor Training Course
issued by SGS United Kingdom Ltd. in September 2019.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Sze was employed as property
management assistant in April 2005 by Jones Lang LaSalle Management
Services Ltd, being a company engaging in the provision of services
specialising in real estates. She was subsequently promoted to the
position of assistant management surveyor in March 2006 and remained
in that position until she left such company in August 2006. In August
2006, she was employed as a marketing assistant in the communications
department of Hongkong Land Group Limited, being a company
engaging in property investment, management and development until
February 2007.

Ms. Sze is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and an
executive Director, and the sister of Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive
Director.

Mr. Ang Ming Wah (GBA%E) (“Mr. Ang”), aged 65, joined the Group in
March 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr. Ang
was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017. He is
primarily responsible for the business development and planning, control
and management of the Group’s business operation.
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Mr. Ang graduated from the University of Waterloo, Canada, with a
Bachelor of Mathematics in October 1978, and Bachelor of Arts in
October 1979. He also completed an executive program organised by
the Business School of the University of Michigan in 1997. Mr. Ang was
admitted as an associate member of the Hong Kong Management
Association in 1986 and was appointed as an “Occupational Safety and
Health Ambassador” by the Occupational Safety & Health Council in
2008.

Mr. Ang has over 30 years of experience in the environmental hygiene
services industry in Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ang was
employed by Reliance Services Company Limited (currently known as
ISS Facility Services Limited), being a company engaging in the provision
of environmental hygiene related services, as operations manager in May
1986. He was subsequently promoted to senior operations manager in
October 1988. Mr. Ang left such company in February 2000 and his last
position held was director in operation department. Mr. Ang subsequently
joined Best Result Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best Result
Environmental Services Limited), being a company engaging in the
provision of cleaning services, as general manager in July 2000 and was
appointed as director and general manager in 2004. He held that position
until he left such company in September 2006.

Mr. Sze Wai Lun (HE&1f®) (“Mr. Sze”), aged 38, joined the Group in
September 2007 and was appointed as a Director on 20 June 2016. Mr.
Sze was re-designated as an executive Director on 21 February 2017.
He is primarily responsible for the overall management of IT development
of the Group.

Mr. Sze graduated from Giriffith University, Australia, with a Bachelor of
Commerce in December 2006, and a Diploma of Commerce from
Queensland Institute of Business and Technology (currently known as
Griffith College), Australia, in February 2003. He has also obtained a
Diploma in SME Company Operation & Management from Hong Kong
Productivity Council in September 2014, a Certificate of Data Centre
Operation and Maintenance Engineers Course from Hong Kong
Productivity Council in February 2015 and a Certificate of CGEIT (Certified
in the Governance of Enterprise IT) from Hong Kong Productivity Council
in May 2015.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sze was employed by Citicorp International
Limited, being a company which provides banking and financial services
as a securities operations professional in the securities operations
department of the operations and technology group in April 2007. He
held that position until he left such company in August 2007.

Mr. Sze is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui, the Chairperson and an
executive Director, and the brother of Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive
Director.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen (R#&i§) (Chinese alias: RIEE), M.H. (“Mr.
Yuen”), aged 73, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 21 February 2017 and is responsible for providing
independent judgment on the Group’s strategy, performance, resources
and standard of conduct. He is also the chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yuen graduated with a Master of Science in Interdisciplinary Design
and Management from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013.
He is an Eminent fellow member of the Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors, fellow member of Chartered Institute of Housing, fellow
member of the HK Institute of Housing and a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He has more than 50 years of real estate
experience from both public and private sectors.

Mr. Yuen was the ex-chairman of the Industry Training Advisory
Committee (property management) of the Education Bureau, past
chairman of the Real Estate Service Training Board, ex-committee
member of the Employee Retraining Board, ex-member of the Land and
Building Advisory Committee, past chairman of the Chartered Institute of
Housing (HK branch), past president of the HK Association of Property
Management Companies and past president of the HK Institute of Real
Estate Administrators. Mr. Yuen has retired from the office of executive
director of a real estate investment fund and has been appointed as its
non-executive chairman since June 2017.

Mr. Yuen is currently an independent non-executive director of Li Bao Ge
Group Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1869) and Janco Holdings Limited (whose shares
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8035). He was a
non-executive director and chairman of the board of directors of Affluent
Partners Holdings Limited (stock code: 1466), the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from February 2018 to
October 2019. From January 2019 to January 2021, Mr. Yuen was an
independent non-executive director of Real Nutriceutical Group Limited
(stock code: 2010), a company previously listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and the shares of which were delisted on 25 January
2021.
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Mr. Chung Koon Yan ($23EH) (“Mr. Chung”), aged 57, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is
responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group’s strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also the
chairperson of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Chung graduated with a Master of Professional Accounting from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Hong Kong in November 2000. He is
a practicing member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chung is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since February 2007 and November
2014 respectively. He is also a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Chung is currently a director of Chiu, Choy & Chung CPA Ltd. and
has more than 20 years’ experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.
Currently, he is also an independent non-executive director of Synergy
Group Holdings International Limited (stock code: 1539), the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and an
independent non-executive director of Great World Company Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8003), the shares of which are listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange. From 12 November 2013 to 10 June 2021, Mr. Chung
was an independent non-executive director of Asian Citrus Holdings
Limited (stock code: 73), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and were admitted to trading on AIM (a
market operated by the London Stock Exchange) in 2005 but which have
been cancelled from trading on AIM since 29 March 2017.

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung (5 El3&) (‘Mr. Ma”), aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is
responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group’s strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Ma is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. He graduated from the
Australian National University, Australia with a Bachelor Degree in Arts in
1983 and a Bachelor Degree in Laws in 1984. He was admitted to the
High Court of Hong Kong in July 1987 and is also a qualified lawyer in
both state and federal courts in Australia. Mr. Ma is currently a partner of
Chiu & Partners and his main practice area is securities, banking and
commercial law.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Wong Yat Sum (E—1\) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 44, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is
responsible for providing independent judgement on the Group’s
strategy, performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also a
member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Wong obtained a Special Degree of Bachelor of Science in
Accounting from The University of Hull in the United Kingdom in July
2000. He has been a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since October 2014 and The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants since August 2013.

Mr. Wong has over 18 years of auditing, accounting and financial
management experience. He worked for Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from
September 2000 to October 2007. From November 2007 to November
2009, Mr. Wong worked for a private wood flooring company as a
financial controller in Shanghai, China. He was the chief financial officer of
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from
December 2009 to October 2019 and was its company secretary and
authorised representative from January 2010 to October 2019.

Mr. Chan Chun Sing (BR#RZ) (‘Mr. Chan”), aged 41, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 February 2017 and is
responsible for providing independent judgment on the Group’s strategy,
performance, resources and standard of conduct. He is also a member
of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Chan has over 19 years of experience in the fields of accounting and
auditing matters of listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained a
bachelor's degree of arts in accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2001. In November 2015, Mr. Chan obtained an
executive master of business administration from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and has been a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors since March 2013. He is also an associate member
of both the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and the
Chartered Governance Institute since June 2021. Mr. Chan worked for
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September 2001 to July 2011 and his
last position held was senior manager in the audit department.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Chan has been an independent non-executive director of Lai Si
Enterprise Holding Limited (whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2266) since January 2017. He was also
the chief financial officer of Lap Kei Engineering (Holdings) Limited (whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1690) from February 2015 to December 2020 and has been the
company secretary of such company since January 2018. Mr. Chan
served as an executive director of Janco Holdings Limited (whose shares
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8035) from
October 2019 to December 2020 and served as its company secretary
from October 2019 to May 2021. Mr. Chan joined a private company as
chief financial officer from July 2013 to February 2014 and was appointed
as executive director from March 2014 to April 2015 and was designated
as non-executive director from May 2015 to March 2017. He has also
been a director of McMillan Woods (Hong Kong) CPA Limited since
November 2019.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Leung Chi Kong (&Ml) (“Mr. Leung”), aged 59, is the assistant
general manager of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the overall
management of sites operations of the Group. Mr. Leung has over 35
years of experiences in the environmental hygiene services industry in
Hong Kong. He was employed by Reliance Services Company Limited
(currently known as ISS Facility Services Limited), being a company
engaging in the provision of environmental hygiene related services, as an
assistant foreman. He left such company in February 2001 and the last
position held was site manager. Mr. Leung then joined Best Result
Cleaning Services Ltd. (currently known as Best Result Environmental
Services Limited), being a company engaging in the provision of cleaning
services, where he worked as assistant operations manager in February
2001 and was subsequently promoted to operation manager in October
2004, where he held such position until he left the company in September
2006 and joined the Group in February 2007. Mr. Leung has obtained a
Certificate Programme on Supervisory Management from The Hong
Kong Management Association in March 2000 and he was awarded a
Training Certificate on Safety for Cleansing Work (managers and
supervisors) by the Occupational Safety & Health Council in December
2009. Mr. Leung also obtained an Aluminum Mobile Working Platform
Training Certificate issued by Origin Production Limited trading as The
Hong Kong Safety Training Association in July 2004 and held a
Construction Industry Safety Training Certificate from June 2004 to June
2007.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Chow Kai Chi (BEXE) (“Mr. Chow”), aged 52, is the senior finance
manager of the Group. He is primarily responsible for the financial
reporting, financial planning, treasury, financial control matters of the
Group. Mr. Chow obtained a Bachelor of Arts in Business Accounting in
September 1999 from the University of Lincolnshire & Humberside
(currently known as the University of Lincoln), the United Kingdom by
long distance learning. He is currently a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and was admitted as a member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in October 2001.

Mr. Chow has over 28 years of experience in accounting and finance
industry in Hong Kong. He was employed as a clerk in the finance
department by Nanyang Brothers Tobacco Co., Ltd, a tobacco
manufacturer in June 1988. He was promoted to senior clerk in January
1991 and held that position until he left in August 1991. Mr. Chow then
joined Yue Po Engineering Co., Ltd, being a company that provides
kitchen design services and supplies catering equipment as senior clerk
in the accounting department in March 1992 and was promoted to
account officer in October 1992, in which position he remained until he
left such company in March 1995. He then joined Siu Wor Trading Co.
Ltd, being a company engaging in jewellery trading related business as
an accountant in April 1995 and left the company in January 1998. Mr.
Chow subsequently joined Trans Asia Computer Superstore Ltd., being a
company engaging in sales of computer related equipment as an
accountant from June 1998 to August 1999. He then worked as a senior
accountant in Hung Mau Realty & Construction Ltd, being a company
engaging in the provision of general construction works from November
1999 to July 2002. From July 2002 to April 2005, Mr. Chow worked as
an accountant at Broadway Photo Supply Ltd, then being an exporter of
camera and photographic equipment. He then worked as an accountant
in Suga Electronics Limited, being a company providing advanced
electronics manufacturing services, from May 2005 to August 2005 and
joined the Group in November 2005.
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Report of the Directors

E%ﬁiﬁ*’:

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal business of the Group is provision of environmental hygiene
and related services and airline catering support services in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular under the following separate sections:

(@ review of the Company’s business and financial position, and
development and future prospects of the Company’s business are
shown in the “Chairperson’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report;

(b)  the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are shown in
the section headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” below;

(c) the Group’s environmental policies and performance are shown in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report and the section headed “Environmental Policies and
Performance” below;

(d) the Group’s key relationships with employees, customers and
suppliers are shown in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report and the section headed “Relationships
with Key Stakeholders” below;

(e) the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are
shown in the section headed “Compliance with Laws and
Regulations” below and the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report” of this annual report; and

()  details of key performance indicators are shown in the “Financial

Highlights” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

No significant events that have an effect on the Group subsequent to the
year ended 31 March 2021.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects may be affected by risks and uncertainties directly or
indirectly pertaining to the Group’s businesses. The risk factors set out
below are those that could result in the Group’s businesses, financial
conditions, results of operations or growth prospects differing materially
from expected or historical results. Such factors are by no means
exhaustive or comprehensive, and there may be other risks in addition to
those shown below which are not known to the Group or which may not
be material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Strategic Risks

The competition in the environmental hygiene and related services market
is intense due to low barriers of entries.

The Group continuously reviews its competitive edges in view of the
industry and will continue to strengthen its established position in the
environmental hygiene and related services industry by (i) ensuring service
quality by providing training to employees; (i) arranging sufficient workers
to complete tasks with supervision; (i) enhancing customer satisfaction
by responding to customers’ feedback; and (iv) improve responsiveness
especially under urgent or unexpected situation. The management
believes that the Group remains competitive when compared to the
small/medium size corporations as sizeable tender requires adequate
financial resources and manpower to render services to projects.
Meanwhile, tenderers are required to be qualified to the approved
supplier list in order to be invited for the bidding of tenders.

Besides, the Group will continue to strengthen its market position by
building and sustaining the reputation as a socially responsible and
quality services provider; increasing operational efficiency; and treasuring
the business opportunities.
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Report of the Directors
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Operational Risks

Inability to recruit sufficient labour may materially affect the Group’s
operations and financial performance. Further, any increment in the
statutory minimum wage may increase labour costs and therefore may
adversely affect profitability.

Business operations of the Group are labour-intensive and due to the
locality of its customers, all of the Group’s employees are employed in
Hong Kong. Any shortage in the supply of workers in Hong Kong may
adversely affect the Group’s operations and financial performance. The
Directors are of the view that there is no assurance that the statutory
minimum wage rate will not be further revised upward in the future or that
labour costs may not increase generally due to, for instance, the
continued expansion of workforce. In addition, the prescribed minimum
hourly wage rate under the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter 608 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) is reviewed and adjusted periodically. If there are
further increment in the statutory minimum wage in the future and the
Group is unable to pass the increased staff costs to its customers, the
Group’s profit margins would be reduced.

In response to the high labour turnover risks, (i) staff welfare committee is
set up by the Group to provide proper channels for quality communication
between employees and management; (i) exit interview is conducted by
the human resources department with leaving staff; (jii) budget (including
manpower budget) is prepared for every projects; and (iv) third party
service providers are engaged to ensure sufficient manpower. In addition,
the management has remained resolute in controlling labour and other
costs so as to maintain the Group’s competitiveness and bolster its
market position. Certain measures are adopted to monitor costs, for
example, increase salaries of front-line staff in accordance with the
statutory minimum wage rate adjustment, prepare budget on a project
basis based on experience of senior management, closely monitor the
progress and quality of projects to prevent cost overrun, and establish
approval procedure for incurring additional costs to accommodate for
situations when additional expenditures are required.

The Group’s revenue is mainly derived from tender contracts and there is

no assurance that the existing contracts may be renewed upon expiry or
new contracts may be awarded to the Group.
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Report of the Directors
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The Group is required to submit new tenders upon expiry of the existing
contracts or to bid for new contracts from time to time. In relation to the
existing service contracts which are about to expire, the time frame for
submitting new tenders for supplying the same services to the customer
is generally three months prior to expiry of the service contract. There is
no assurance that the Group will meet the mandatory tendering
requirements and, in such case, the Group may not be granted the
contract and therefore, the Group’s business operations and financial
results may be adversely affected. To response to the above risk, the
Group has established a relatively broad customer base ranging from
various government departments in Hong Kong and subsidiaries of multi-
national companies to tenants of various premises. Besides, the Group
has been putting effort to build positive market reputation and develop
long-term relationship with customers.

An occurrence of a natural disaster, widespread health epidemic or other
outbreaks could have a material adverse impact on the Group’s business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The occurrence of a natural disaster or a prolonged outbreak of an
epidemic illness or other adverse public health developments in Hong
Kong could materially disrupt the Group business and operations. For
example, the outbreak of COVID-19 could significantly affect the Group’s
business by causing (i) temporary suspension and/or cancellation of
environmental hygiene and related services and airline catering support
services as requested by the Group’s customers; and (i) shortage of
goods and services from the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors, and
there is no assurance that it will not cause any severe disruption to the
Group’s operations and have a material adverse impact on the Group’s
business, financial condition and results of operations. The Group’s
operations could also be disrupted if any of its employees suspected of
being infected by COVID-19, since this may require the Group to
quarantine some or all of these employees and disinfect the Group’s
offices or relevant works sites. The occurrence of natural disaster,
widespread health epidemic or other outbreaks may disrupt the Group’s
business operations. As a result, the Group’s cash flow and the financial
results may be adversely affected.

To minimize the impact from the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group has
promptly put cost management measures in place. Human resources
arrangements such as layoff and introduction of no pay leave to
employees are implemented to reduce the operating expenditures. The
Group will continue monitoring the situation carefully and proactively
respond to the development of the pandemic. Given that the customers
from the airline catering support business only accounted for a relatively
small portion of the Group’s revenue, it is expected that there will not
have a material adverse impact to the business overall.
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Compliance Risks

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
insurance coverage of the Group may not adequately protect it against
certain risks.

Through close monitoring of various legal and regulatory pronouncements
from the government by its legal and compliance personnel, the Group is
able to keep itself updated with various regulatory requirements and
complies with local labour laws and regulations such as the Employment
Ordinance and Employees’ Compensation Ordinance. A comprehensive
work safety management and supervision system is also established for
enhancing safety performance. In addition, the management will review
the insurance coverage on an ongoing basis.
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Financial Risks

Please also refer to note 30 to the financial statements for the financial
risks facing by the Group.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Employees

The Company treats human resources as the Group’s valuable assets.
Training and retaining good employees are always at top priorities.

Besides on-the-job trainings and funding for continuous learning, two
committees are set up to ensure good physical and psychological health
of our staffs. Workshops are held regularly to raise staff's awareness of
occupational health and safety. The risk-free working environment is
guaranteed by the certification of OHSAS 18001 Occupational Health
and Safety Management System. In addition, the Company also
organizes a range of recreational activities so as to foster team spirit.

Customers

Keeping strong relationship with the customers is critical to maintain the
competitiveness of the Group.

For servicing industry with human as the main concern, it is vital to have
an independent, comprehensive quality assurance mechanism in order to
maintain high level of service, in which rule-of-man style and subjectivity
in the old days can be eliminated. In view of this, the Company has
established an evaluation mechanism with mutual assessment by internal
and external teams of professionals audits. In order to achieve a set
standard of service and customers’ satisfaction, the work is monitored
and reviewed in various aspects including provision of resources, training,
infrastructure and working environment, with customers’ expectation as
the foundation. For services that are not up to high standard, remedial
action will be advised and implemented with continuous improvement
follow through. Also, preventive measure will be formulated as future
guidelines.
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Suppliers and Sub-contractors

The Group maintains a list of approved suppliers and sub-contractors
which are selected with reference to, among other things, material/
service quality, reliability and price. The Group performs annual evaluation
on the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors with respect to raw
materials/service quality, reliability and timely delivery.

Further discussions on the relationship with key stakeholders is set out in
the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group has been putting unremitting efforts in environmental
protection by introducing sustainable machineries, devices and
equipment for operation.

The Group’s Environmental Protection Committee (EPC) maintains close
collaborations with green groups and chambers of commerce to promote
the concept of sustainable development. The Group’s determination is
marked by the ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
accreditation obtained in 2001.

Further discussions on the environmental policies is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board was unware of any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

Further discussion on the Group’s compliance with laws and regulations
is contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published financial results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021, together with
the financial results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
four years ended 31 March 2020, is set out on page 180 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the state
of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 103 to 107 of this annual report.

The Board resolved to recommend a final dividend of HK5.9 cents (2020:
nil) per Share for the year ended 31 March 2021, amounting to a total of
HK$35,400,000. The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Tuesday, 10 August 2021 (the “2021 AGM”) and is expected to
be payable on or about Tuesday, 31 August 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 5
August 2021 to Tuesday, 10 August 2021, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, all transfers of Shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Wednesday, 4 August 2021.
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For determining the entitlement of the Shareholders to the aforesaid
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Monday, 16 August 2021 to Wednesday, 18 August 2021,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfers of Shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend, which is
subject to approval of the Shareholders at the 2021 AGM, all transfers of
Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 13 August 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2021, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,000,000 and the number of its issued ordinary Shares was
600,000,000 of HK$0.01 each.

There was no movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 105 of this annual report and
note 24 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to the Shareholders amounted to approximately HK$83.6 million.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting
Shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
sustainable dividend policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to allow
Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profit and for the Company
to retain adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth. In proposing
any dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors
including but not limited to the Group’s overall results of operation,
financial condition, working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements, liquidity position, future expansion plans, general economic
conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Group. Any declaration and payment as
well as the amount of the dividends will be subject to any restrictions
under the applicable laws and regulations and the Company’s
constitutional documents. The Company does not have any
predetermined dividend distribution proportion or distribution ratio. Any
future declarations of dividends may or may not reflect the Company’s
historical declarations of dividends and will be at the absolute discretion
of the Directors.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or
cancel the dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date
of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Madam Ng Sing Mui (Chairperson)
Ms. Sze Tan Nei

Mr. Ang Ming Wah

Mr. Sze Wai Lun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen
Mr. Chung Koon Yan

Mr. Ma Kwok Keung

Mr. Wong Yat Sum

Mr. Chan Chun Sing
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Pursuant to the Company'’s articles of association, Mr. Ma Kwok Keung,
Mr. Wong Yat Sum and Mr. Chan Chun Sing shall retire from office as
Directors by rotation at the 2021 AGM. Mr. Chan Chun Sing, being
eligible, offer himself for re-election at the 2021 AGM. Mr. Ma Kwok
Keung confirmed that he would like to spend more time pursuing his own
business, and Mr. Wong Yat Sum confirmed that he would like to devote
more time to pursue his personal goal, therefore, they will not offer
themselves for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

The Company has renewed the service contract with each of the
executive Directors for a term of three years commencing on 16 March
2020 unless terminated by not less than three months prior written notice
served by either party on the other or otherwise in accordance with the
terms of the service contract. The Company has also renewed the letter
of appointment with each of the independent non-executive Directors for
a term of two years commencing on 16 March 2020 unless terminated
by not less than three months prior written notice served by either party
on the other or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the letter of
appointment. Each of such appointments is subject to the rotation and
retirement provisions in the articles of association of the Company. Each
of the Directors is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
annual general meetings of the Company pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company.

Mr. Chan Chun Sing, being the Director proposed for re-election at the
2021 AGM, does not have service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without the payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out on
pages 64 to 71 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined under
paragraph 15 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules) to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is or was a party, and in
which a Director or an entity connected with a Director, or the controlling
shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, is or was materially interested, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at 31 March 2021 or at any time during the year
ended 31 March 2021.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed at 31 March 2021 or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Schemes” below,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report was the Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and
senior management arising out of corporate activities.

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, every Director
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective
offices; provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said
persons.

Save for the above, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report, there was or is, any permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’
Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) being in
force for the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the
Company or otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company
(if made by the Company).
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements. The Remuneration Committee will review and recommend
the Board the remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors
and senior management with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities, contribution, and time devoted to the Group and the
overall performance of the Group.

The Directors and senior management may also be granted options
under the share option scheme of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed on 21
February 2017, the principal terms of the pre-IPO share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) were approved and adopted. The
purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to aid the Company in
retaining key and senior employee of the Group. Principal terms of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were set out in the Prospectus and note
25 to the financial statements. An aggregate of 192,000 share options at
an exercise price of HK$0.42 per Share, being the offer price under the
share offer, were granted on 23 February 2017 to an executive Director
and certain employees of the Group. No further options will be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
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Details of the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option

Scheme are as follows:

Category of
participants

SHRERR

Director
43
Ang Ming Wah

Sub-total
/J\ E—|-

4 Employees in
aggregate
AHAEEE

Sub-total
N E—|-

Total
@t

Outstanding Exercised Cancelled
as at 1 April during the during the
2020 year year
R2020F
481R
RITHE

REAR RER
BIRE &t 8

64,000 - -

64,000 - -

64,000 - -
64,000 - -

104,000 - -

104,000 - -

104,000 - -
104,000 - -

168,000 - -
168,000 - -

REBEXALCFAEEAMBREAIRLZE

BEFHBWT

Number of Shares (Note 1)
BBEE (FE1)
Exercise
Lapsed Outstanding Price per

during the as at 31 Share
year March 2021  Option
#2021 F =37

RER 3A31E BRE
P xfTE THEE

- 64,000 HK$0.42

— 64,000 0.42/ 7T

- 64,000
- 64,000

- 104,000 HK$0.42

Exercisable Period

16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027
(Note 2)

2017316 H £2027F3 A15H
(M &E2)

16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027

(Note 2)
— 104,000 04287 2017F3H16BE2027F3H15H
(Ff5E2)
— 104,000
— 104,000
- 168,000
- 168,000
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Notes:

Number of Shares over which options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is exercisable.

All holders of options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme may only
exercise their options in the following manner:
(a) 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the period from 16

March 2017 to 15 March 2027; and

(b) the remaining 50% of the options granted are exercisable during the
period from 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved by a resolution of the sole Shareholder
passed on 21 February 2017. No options under the Share Option
Scheme has been granted since its adoption.

Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as
follow:

(a)

(b)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive to
employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants, advisers,
substantial shareholders, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group and to promote the success of the business of the Group.

Participant of the Share Option Scheme

The Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such terms as it
may think fit, grant any employee (full-time or part-time), director,
consultant, adviser, substantial shareholder, distributor, contractor,
supplier, agent, customer, business partner or service provider of
the Group, options to subscribe at a price calculated in accordance
with paragraph (c) below for such number of Shares as it may
determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely
determined by the Board and notified to a participant and shall be
at least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of
the option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of the option; and (i) the nominal value of Share
on the date of grant of the option.

Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares of the Company
available for issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 60,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options granted to any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board
may determine which shall not exceed ten years from the date of
grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on 21 February 2017, subject to early
termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

IR A0 B 1%
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SEH)RBIMEARERMBK
mE:MRMNERBRER LB
AAEEXREEBIAERARERAA
AP U T E ¢ R (i) B D 10 B B
REBHZEHE-

RUEBREREAEY
BEBBREOEORAELEBEL
EH(EEER)BEARER  BR
HERABRENZABRERNTE
BEEADRZFUBT -

RARBAHBTROHE LR

REBREFSETAHETZRMOHE
214 60,000,000 - (R AFHRHEHEHES
BT 210% °

ESRENEHELR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2021, the interests or short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code to be notified to the Company and Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

() Long position in the Shares

ESERIBRTHAERAR
5] 5 1E 1] 48 Bt 0% Z VI
EROREZ2EERKXR

MR2021F3AB31H  EERARNAEETH
AE\EA$Z\\7&EIEH$E swi@(m%i
FREEGFIEXVE) < B - BERHG R
BEHFFHEBREBEZSXNBEKOEXVIE
7TR8D B EME AN QA KR FT 2 ok
KE (RRESHREBEEFLNBERIZZS
BXWEEXREREE 2 EEIAR) - 3K
RIEFHREEGEFI52EBE LR &L
XFritE M A KARIBEEESTR 2R E S
HERARARBRAZERZIORBAT

I AROWER

Number of
Shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage
shares held/ of interest in
Name of Director Capacity/nature of interest interested in the Company
eSS L]
BEHRG S ERAFEREN
EEpnE BB HEEME HEROHE BHBEIH
Ng Sing Mui Interest of a controlled corporation; Settlor of 432,000,000 72%
a discretionary trust (Note 1)
REETE R LEED 2RETMETEA 1) 432,000,000 2%
Sze Tan Nei Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 432,000,000 72%
£ e TREFREE A FEE2) 432,000,000 72%
Sze Wai Lun Beneficiary of a discretionary trust (Note 3) 432,000,000 72%
I 12 fm 2REEEXEA ([E3) 432,000,000 2%
Ang Ming Wah Beneficial owner (Note 4) 64,000 0.01%
HLERE BE&HER A (MiE4) 64,000 0.01%

“
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() Long position in the ordinary shares of

associated corporations

) AEBEZEEERNER

Number of
Name of associated Capacity/ shares held/  Percentage
Name of Director  corporation nature of interest interested in of interest
¥ #E
&I e
EEpnE HEEE SR BG EattE RO EE Bok
Ng Sing Mui Sze'’s Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation; 1 100%
Settlor of a discretionary trust
RETE EERERER A A REEEER 2RERME 1 100%
FEEA
Rich Cheer Development  Beneficial owner 1 100%
Limited
EHERARAA BEmfBA 1 100%
Sze Tan Nei Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
iR i R AR A 7 PREEXHEA 1 100%
Sze Wai Lun Sze’s Holdings Limited Beneficiary of a discretionary trust 1 100%
iAo e KR AR A 7 EHEEIXEA 1 100%
Notes: B sE -

All the 432,000,000 Shares are beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings
Limited, which is in turn held by Rich Cheer Development Limited acting
as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust is a
discretionary trust set up by Madam Ng Sing Mui as settlor and Rich
Cheer Development Limited as trustee on 8 January 2015. The
beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun
and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. Madam Ng Sing Mui is the settlor of the Sze Family
Trust and the sole director of Sze’s Holdings Limited and therefore
Madam Ng Sing Mui is deemed or taken to be interested in all the
432,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the
purposes of the SFO. Madam Ng Sing Mui is also the sole director and
shareholder of Rich Cheer Development Limited.

FIT 7 432,000,000 % % 17 35 8 1 K 12 %
BERAGREXZAE MEKERER
ARAHEREEBRAR(AERRK
EAENZRANEB - EERRKEELA
REBZT(EFATETLEA) RER
ERABRARMEATEA)R2015%F
1ABHB YN EREER BRRKE
AR ABREESRE) BERE
EMERELLE RESLLEARRK
REEANTELEAREKEZERSE
BARME—ZS Al BEFHFR
HEGKD RESZTHRAREE
RIERIERERAREZBEENRE
432,000,000/% & h H B = - REEIE
ZTNAEHERBRARMNE —&
EMARE -
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2 Ms. Sze Tan Nei is the daughter of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Ms. Sze Tan Nei
is one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore she is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

3. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is the son of Madam Ng Sing Mui. Mr. Sze Wai Lun is
one of the beneficiaries of the Sze Family Trust and therefore he is
deemed and taken to be interested in all the 432,000,000 Shares
beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings Limited for the purposes of the SFO.

4, Mr. Ang Ming Wah is interested in 64,000 Shares which may be allotted
and issued to him upon full exercise of all options granted to him under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company nor their associates had any interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which each of them has taken or deemed to have
taken under the SFO), or which would be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be kept therein,
or which would be required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange as at 31 March 2021.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Kk JEIEIR E B BR A T
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’/OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, the following persons (other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company pursuant to provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO:

Long position in the Shares

Name of Shareholder Capacity/nature of interest

IR & B0 EEEE

Beneficial owner
ExnEAA

Sze’s Holdings Limited
MR ER AR AR

Rich Cheer Development Limited Interest of controlled corporation as the trustee of

the Sze Family Trust (Note)
EHERBR QA

Note: The entire issued share capital of Sze’s Holdings Limited is held by Rich Cheer
Development Limited as the trustee of the Sze Family Trust. The Sze Family Trust
is a discretionary trust established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of
the Sze Family Trust include, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan Nei. By
virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO, Rich Cheer Development Limited is
deemed or taken to be interested in all the Shares beneficially owned by Sze’s
Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Directors were not
aware that there was any person (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

REfEkE  FRERFKEEEZTEA PR

R2021F3A3H LU TALE(EERAR
AIEZITBABRIN RARA ARG 2 HE
o EEEZLEZRBEEZESLBEKRE
3BBRAFTENELMPEIRS I AR

RERHNEE
Number of Percentage of
Shares held/ interest in
interested in  the Company
iy #&E HAEAT
EEW EHEN
R4 &8 Aok
432,000,000 72%
432,000,000 72%
432,000,000 72%
432,000,000 72%

M ERERERAANEHBEHITRAHENR
ERARLA(BERFTKREENZEA)F
E-MRREEAERREBLIEINZE
ER-BERREREENZDZARREEFE
EIREREENBENELLT - RIEES LD
BEPIEXVEA G ERERER A BR
BRABERERERERAAESZEEN
PR B P R A R AR

Br EXFTIEEESIN BR2021F3A31H &
FEXTHNBEAMAL(EEFIARAESIT
A B BRIN) B sk 8 1R B R A R &) A% 15 2 A8
RGP A AREESKBEENEXV
HE2RID L AARRFEERELR
BIEEH L EE 033615 QA 1FE
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1)
OF THE LISTING RULES

Other than the experiences of the Directors including other directorships
held in the last three years in public companies the securities of which are
listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas, which have
been disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
above, the changes in the information of the Directors since the date of
interim report of the Company for the six months ended 30 September
2020 which fall to be disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules

BB LW AR R $13.51B(1) %
ZIE

KREENER(PERABEZ-FNEEERS
REBNEBIINEMNBEFMB LT ZARA
ARAMET HAEERK ) EREXE
ERERERE] P IFEEN BARQF
H E2020F9A30RH (L <l Az Bk &
B HBRAR - R E E TR RIZE13.51B(1) & 7A
FTHEENESERN2EHHIMOT :

are set out below:

Name of Directors

EEfR

Madam Ng Sing Mui, an executive
Director and the Chairperson
REMLLT BITEFHRIRE

Ms. Sze Tan Nei, an executive Director

AR L BITES

Mr. Ang Ming Wah, an executive Director

HAERL WTES

Mr. Sze Wai Lun, an executive Director

BEMETE RITEF

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Details of Changes

BEHR

Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$3,611,784 to
HK$3,684,024 with effect from 1 April 2021

HERFHH3,611,78478 T £3,684,02478 7T ° B2021F4 51 B #E
AR o

Her basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$2,893,392 to
HK$2,951,256 with effect from 1 April 2021.

HEARFH 2,893,302/ T 52,951,256/ 7T * E2021F4 A1 Hi#E
AR o

His basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$1,491,012 to
HK$1,520,832 with effect from 1 April 2021.

HAKRFHH1,401,0128 03 E1,520,832/8 70 H2021F4 A1 8
AR o

His basic annual remuneration has been increased from HK$1,083,528 to
HK$1,105,200 with effect from 1 April 2021.

HERFHH1,083,528E L1 E 1,105,200 7T * B2021F4 A1 H#E
AR o

KIEZERERBRDF
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COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, each of Sze’'s Holdings Limited, Rich
Cheer Development Limited, Madam Ng Sing Mui, Ms. Sze Tan Nei and
Mr. Sze Wai Lun (the “Controlling Shareholders”) have entered into the
deed of non-competition undertakings (the “Deed of Non-competition
Undertakings”) in favour of the Company (for its own and on behalf of all
members of the Group) on 23 February 2017, pursuant to which each of
the Controlling Shareholders, irrevocably and unconditionally, undertakes
and covenants with the Company that during the period that the Deed of
Non-competition Undertakings remains effective, each of the Controlling
Shareholders shall not, and shall procure that none of his/her/its
associates (except any member of the Group), directly or indirectly (other
than through the Group) engage, participate or hold any right or interest
in or render any services to or otherwise be involved, whether as a
shareholder, director, employee, partner, agent or otherwise (as the case
may be), in any business in competition with or likely to be in competition
with the Group’s existing business activity and any business activities
which may be undertaken by the Group from time to time and/or which
any member of the Group may undertake in Hong Kong from time to
time. Details of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings have been set
out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders —
Deed of Non-competition Undertakings” in the Prospectus.

The Company has received the annual declaration from each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of their respective compliance with
the terms of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year
ended 31 March 2021. The independent non-executive Directors, having
reviewed the annual declarations and made reasonable enquiry, were
satisfied that the Controlling Shareholders have complied with the terms
of the Deed of Non-competition Undertakings during the year ended 31
March 2021.

EBRRRETRATAIRT
s

HIMBRERMBEE BEKERERA
A2 ERARAR RESLLT B
‘Tt RkpEREE(TERRERDES S
R2017F2A283H A ARG (BAERG KR
EAEBEAKRERAR) BT A6
FERERBE((THBASRE]D Bt &
PR A% IR BT A RS K R R A AR A B R
ERR#E R TIBRIALZBELVEE &
ERERTERBRELBEA(TRER
EETMARKEAR) T eEEXBE(EB
AEEBRBRIMNKEE 2EBAEEBREER
EE R ANEEAETREET R R AEE
ERIK B AR AJRER BB TEFETOEM
EBEDORRBEF U AERKBEZOEM
B SR EPIFEERR R iR
HAEMBREIAEME N (BEwmEIEAR
R EF -EE AEF RESHMAL
(RTBEAME))LEBEER - THF &
ERBENFBHNBREREERBRRD
R —THEAERE| 5

ARREEESIEBRBEERFEESARE
FE2021F3A3IB I FEETFTAHFAA
REBERFTEENFTFEER - BUIENTE
EREHETFTEERRARELAREENRNE 2
MR EE R & 22021 E3 A1 H IEF E
BB R ARG -
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS OR FEFZFRHEERIIED
SUB-CONTRACTORS

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the percentages of () revenue #H E2021F3A31BILFE  (AEBEEE
attributable to the Group’s major customers; and (i) cost of services TFEMMW T MilAEEETEHEFK S
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers or sub-contractors are set out B EERAEK AN E D ELEY 0T -

below:
Approximate percentage
of the Group’s
HEAEENBEABT I
Cost of
Revenue Services
Uz B 7 BX A<
The largest customer SN S 41.3% —
Five largest customers in aggregate hAREFER 62.7% —
The largest supplier or sub-contractor SAEERXSBEE — 22.6%
Five largest suppliers or sub-contractors in aggregate AR EES D BEEE - 29.3%

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders B ZE i ST A B2 X B &£ A (T 1]
(which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the R (FEESZFHEA BB D BITIRMDE
number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest B MH5%) AAREFEKN LT AEPL » O A

customers, five largest suppliers and sub-contractors noted above. EEEsBEETEAEMER -
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BhEER

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles 7N /A 5] 48 4% = 2 48 Bl sk A~ & 7] 3= 1 5k 57 BT
of association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the FiHEHENEREEZEZB T EEHE
Company is incorporated. S BERMIE -

“
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PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 March 2021, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of the Directors
nor the Controling Shareholders nor any of their respective close
associates that compete or may compete with the business of the Group
and any other conflicts of interest which any such person has or may
have with the Group during the year ended 31 March 2021.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group had not entered into
any connected transactions or continuing connected transactions that
are not exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group donated HK$1,000,000 to The Community Chest of Hong
Kong for “Stock Code Balloting for Charity Scheme” and HK$2,000 to
The Mental Health Association of Hong Kong during the year ended 31
March 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the Company
maintained the public float as required under the GEM Listing Rules or
the Listing Rules* throughout the year ended 31 March 2021 and has
continued to maintain such float as at the date of this annual report.

BE HEIEBEERAQIF LD
R 2

HZE2021F3A31BIEFE  ARAIEMAE
MNBARMERE HEHREL AR A
TR ETES -

#F S

BEEREWTIME REZE2021F3A31HILF
ER ZEFHTERBEREMNFEESEZ
EEBE AEE T ERNE B BB
ARERBRTFNER SR REMNZS
A £ B B ok 7] B £ 7K & B 13 78 A fa] E b A

HER -

HZE2021F3A31BILFE  NEEWHEFT
YV EMBRBIE14ATIEIBE T KRB EHEM
BEXSRIFEMERS -
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;#

HE2021F3ANBIEFE AEB MBS
RameBORFESHBELHE B
11,000,000 70 * WA BB LEEHE LB
2,000 7T °
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AUDITOR

There has been no change in auditor in the preceding three years. The
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021 have been
audited by BDO Limited, who will retire, being eligible, offer themselves
for reappointment at the 2021 AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the
2021 AGM to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ng Sing Mui
Chairperson and Executive Director

25 June 2021

* The GEM Listing Rules was applicable to the Company prior to the Transfer of
Listing. Immediately after the Transfer of Listing, the Listing Rules shall be

applicable to the Company.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Kk JEIEIR E B BR A T
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B M R B AN R

IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

a5 - +852 2218 8288
{EH : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winson
Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 103 to 179, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021 and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA'’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

25% Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 4.8 and note
7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Service income from provision of environmental hygiene and related
services and airline catering support services is recognised when the
services are rendered. We have identified recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group and there is an inherent risk over the recognition of revenue by
the management to meet specific targets or expectations.

Our response:

Our audit procedures to address the revenue recognition included the
following:

° evaluating the appropriateness of the recognition policy with
reference to the relevant accounting standard;

° inspecting, on sample basis, customer contracts to identify terms
and conditions relating to the provision of services;

° performing substantive analytical procedures to assess whether the
recognised service revenue was in line with the expected level;

° inspecting service income recognised during the year, on sample
basis, and comparing details of the service income being
recognised with relevant the underlying documentation, including
service contracts, service records and invoices; and

° assessing, on a sample basis, the service income recorded before
and after the financial year end date with the relevant underlying
documentation, including service contracts and service records, to
verify whether the service income had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Kk JEIEIREEBR A T
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B B AR E

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin

Practising Certificate Number PO6162

Hong Kong, 25 June 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEeEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{ £ 202143 A31H [t F &

2020
20204F
Notes HK$’000
M & THT
Revenue W =5 7 529,987 569,559
Cost of services PR 75 X 2N (455,163) (485,854)
Gross profit E F 74,824 83,705
Other income and gains N NS 7 67,048 571
General operating expenses —REER X (64,988) (57,758)
Finance costs B & X AN 8 (204) (369)
Profit before income tax BR BT 18 B A1z R 9 76,680 26,149
Income tax expense FriSfim X 10 (2,871) (5,447)
Profit for the year and total comprehensive FREF R A D TTEE A
income for the year attributable to owners E{HFRZEINFZLTE
of the Company 73,809 20,702
Earnings per share BREF 13
— Basic — HEK HK12.3 cents HK3.45 cents
Al AL
— Diluted — s HK12.3 cents | HK3.45 cents
Al Al
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B S AR R R

As at 31 March 2021 2202143 A31H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepayments

Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade payables

Accruals, deposits and other payables

Lease liabilities
Bank borrowings
Tax payable

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Provision for long service payments
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

BEREHE
HRBEE
ER =Y
B IR

i

BEE

s

B 5 R W KIA
BAFIA - RE REAM
Ji& W 3R IR

A 4y [l 75 18
ReRkREFEY

REBAEE

B 5 A 3R
EEtEM - ReREM
J& 5 5K IR

HERE

RITER

& Wi TR

RBEEFE

REERARBRE

ERBEME
HERE

RHRE B H
EEHIARE

REE
R 5
L@
ffé 18
Emen

The consolidated financial statements on pages 103 to 179 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 June

2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ng Sing Mui
REEMN
Director

EE

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

KIEZERERBRAF

2020
20204

Notes HK$’000
Mo 5E FET
14 37,798 34,646
17 651 —
38,449 34,646

15 182 279
16 106,115 124,503
17 7,699 7,719
2,346 36

121,673 40,469

238,015 173,006

18 14,430 14,737
18 31,684 33,995
19 455 1,321
20 5,544 7,431
4 1,512

52,117 58,996

185,898 114,010

224,347 148,656

19 - 455
21 13,687 12,234
22 1,978 1,094
15,665 13,783

208,682 134,873

23 6,000 6,000
202,682 128,873

208,682 134,873

FIBBEEFIT9EMEAZLEATBHREE
R2021F6 A2 EE = b R IKE T
B oUWHTNINESRREE

Sze Tan Nei
i 3 1
Director

EE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{ £ 202143 A31H [t F &

Share

Share Share Merger option Retained

capital premium* reserve* reserve* profits* Total
B IR R

B BOEE §oHEE bt R & om A at

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKEO000 HK$000

THET TAET TAET TFTAET TET TAET

At 1 April 2019 R2019%4 /1R 6,000 48177 20,917 34 49,063 124,191

Final dividend paid ENRERE - - - — (10,0200  (10,020)

Profit for the year and total 4 A 3% Fl| }2 F A

comprehensive income 2 H =B
for the year — — — — 20,702 20,702
Share options lapsed B 5k 3% BE A% 4 = = = (4) 4 —

At 31 March 2020 and R2020F3A31 H K
1 April 2020 20204 A1H 6,000 48,177 20,917 30 59,749 134,873

Profit for the year and total 4 P 3 Fi [ € A

comprehensive income THIKEBRE
for the year — — — — 73,809 73,809
At 31 March 2021 A 2021 3 H31H 6,000 48,177 20,917 30 133,558 208,682

* These reserve balances comprised the reserve account as set out in the * ZEHEELOEGEAMBERIXAHFEES
consolidated statement of financial position. o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # =2021F3 A31H L FE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Interest expenses
Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Depreciation
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment loss
on trade receivables

Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits

and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, deposits

and other payables
Increase in provision for long service payments

Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Prepayments for purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings

Repayment of bank borrowings

Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities
Dividend paid

Net cash used in financing activities

BEIHRETE
1 B 1551 31 5 7

B

FlEIA

78 5%
R - B BRI 2

e
B 5 W R R E B R
(@), fE

EEESEDAKERR
TR, CE M)
B 5 YR IER D, (38 i)
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EETEM B REMEN
B O ) /38 hn
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RERBRE
ENHE
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REZHRERE
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BEVE BELRE
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HEME  BMENRERE
Z 53R

REZBHFAR S FH

METHRERE
RITE TP RIA
BERITHERK
XHHEHERBENAEEED
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76,680

204

8
5,538

(133)

82,297
97
18,521

20
(307)

(2,311)
1,453

99,770
(145)
(5,805)

93,820

(8,770)
(651)

72

(9,349)

Uﬂg)
(1,321)
(59)

(3,267)

2020
20204
HK$’000
FE T

26,149

(8)
369

5
4,839

243

31,597
(265)
(10,249)

(456)
27

3,926
1,754

26,334
(316)
(5,682)

20,336

(1,076)

(12,643)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{ £ 202143 31 H [t F &

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRESEEWEMFE

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of theyear F#HERBELZEEY

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ERESRESEEY

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents B&RESZBEYEH DM
Cash and bank balances 0 e RIRTTEH

81,204

40,469

121,673

121,673
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HK$’000
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33,844
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 7% ¥ 3 MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2021 # =2021F3 A31H L FE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Winson Holdings Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 31 May 2016 under the Companies Law, Cap. 22
(Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s shares have been listed on GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 16 March 2017. On 11 June 2020, the listing of the shares of
the Company have been transferred from GEM to the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. Its principal place of business is Suite 2702, 27th
Floor, Tower 2, Nina Tower, No. 8 Yeung Uk Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries (together with the Company, collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are set out in note 33.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Sze’s Holdings
Limited (“Sze’s Holdings”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and the entire issued share capital of Sze’s
Holdings is held by Rich Cheer Development Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, as the trustee of a family trust (the “Sze
Family Trust”). The Sze Family Trust is a discretionary trust
established by Madam Ng Sing Mui. The beneficiaries of the Sze
Family Trust included, inter alia, Mr. Sze Wai Lun and Ms. Sze Tan
Nei. Rich Cheer Development Limited is deemed or taken to be
interested in all the shares beneficially owned by Sze’s Holdings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2021

HZE2021F3A31BIEFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1

2.2

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new standards and amendments issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”),
which are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 April 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting

Revised Conceptual
Framework for Financial
Reporting

The adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs has no material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.
The Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on
the date they become effective.

2.2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MBHRRHEE
For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{ £ 202143 31 H [t F &
2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSSs (continued) 2.

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (continued)

BRANE BB RS ZE R @

22 EEMEAERERZH
5l RIEE BB YW B R

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 22

4 XE Bl (@)

BRGHERE39
% BEMER
EEAFAH B
IR E R
RTH - BRYE
FELEAUBIRR

FIREERE—F
—H?

BEMBREE
BIE165% 2 (53]
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent ERTEREER 20198 M F S HEE
Concessions' F1657 2 B3] RS IR
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent EBTRBEER 2021F6A30H%
Concessions beyond E16%% 2 (57T H2019E A &
30 June 20212 mIEBESER®
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended EREERNE16 BRTETARANER
Use* 2R IR
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of ERGTEREY BEEAH-ETT
Fulfiling a Contract’ $ZEET CLEY N

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual ERTEREEL HESERZIRMS
Framework® ERE A )

Amendments to HKFRS 1, Annual improvements to EBMBREER  2018FEE2020F 2

HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16 HKFRS 2018-2020" F1% BFAERE FEUBREE

FELEAUFIRR
BARBREE
BIE165% 2 B 5T

Al ey £ 2 i

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as EReTENE1Y BEEIEAR
Current or Non-current and ZIBE SRR BB
related amendments to REE5% (2020
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 F)MBEET®
(2020)°

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting BB ERNE1SR QtHERES
Policies® ZIERT

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting BB ERNELS @t EES
Estimates® Z21Ba]

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets iyt | REFRFELHN
and Liabilities arising from FE12%% 2 {EFT EEREEBH
a Single Transaction® ZIERTE

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets ERTEREER KEEFERHEKBEN

and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its FI0RREAE AgAEEY
Associate or Joint Venture” SR8 7 BHEELNES
&al N
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 2R MY &

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{ £ 202143 31 H [t F &

2. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (Continued) 2. RNBEBYHEHREER @

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been 22 EEMEBEEMARERZH

issued but are not yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

° Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

7 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or
contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
the other new/revised standards would not result in significant
impact on amounts reported in the Group’s financial
statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance which concern the preparation of financial
statements. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R Y AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B E2021463A31HILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“‘HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (“HK$’000”) except otherwise indicated.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

4.2

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-
company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: (i) power over the
investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and (jii) the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #{ £ 202143 31 H [t F &

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXEFTTHE @

4.3 Property, plant and equipment 43 V¥ BERKE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on the following property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line basis to allocate their
costs less their residual value over their estimated useful lives.
The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.
The useful lives are as follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease term
Buildings situated on leasehold land Over the shorter of
unexpired term of lease
and the buildings’
estimated useful lives
Over the shorter of
lease term or useful life

Leasehold improvement

Office furniture and equipment 15-25%
Machinery and equipment 25%
Motor vehicles 25%
Other properties leased for own use Over the lease term
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R Y AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B E2021463A31HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.3

4.4

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Leasing

Accounting as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an
entity to choose not to capitalise leases which are short-term
leases. The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term of less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those leases
have been expensed on straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and
would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to
account for lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease incentives
received; (i) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee;
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXEFTTHE @

4.4 Leasing (Continued) 4.4 1 E @)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-
to-use at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability.

The Group has leased a number of properties under tenancy
agreements which the Group exercises it judgement and
determines that it is a separate class of asset apart from the
leasehold land and buildings which is held for own use. As a
result, the right-of-use asset arising from the properties under
tenancy agreements are carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability
The lease liability is recognised at the present value of the

lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be lease
payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (i) amounts expected to be payable
by the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 # =2021F3 A31H L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXEFTTHE @

4.4 Leasing (Continued) 4.4 HE @)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (i) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (jii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, or to reflect revised in-substance fixed
lease payments.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease
(because, for example, it re-assesses the probability of a
lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it
adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect the
payments to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. The carrying value
of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element
of future lease payments dependent on a rate or index is
revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both
cases, an equivalent adjustment is made to the carrying value
of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount
being amortised over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero,
any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate
with the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate
lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiated increases the
scope of the lease (whether that is an extension to the lease
term, or one or more additional assets being leased), the
lease liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable
on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being
adjusted by the same amount. If the renegotiation results in a
decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount
of the lease liability and right-of-use asset are reduced by the
same proportion to reflect the partial or full termination of the
lease with any difference recognised in profit or loss. The
lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying
amount reflects the amount of the renegotiated payments
over the renegotiated term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the modification date
and the right-of-use asset is adjusted by the same amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.4

4.5

Leasing (continued)

Accounting as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on the straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration for a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are accounted for as lease modifications. The Group
accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, recognising
the remaining lease payments as income on a either a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the
remaining lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

B E2021463A31HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments

(i)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The
following are the measurement category into which the
Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on trade receivables and financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The ECL are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12
months ECL: these are the ECL that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECL: these are ECL that
result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECL is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed to
credit risk.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is
then discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECL based on lifetime ECL. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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(ii)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For other financial assets at amortised cost, ECL are
based on lifetime ECL except when there has not been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the allowance will be based
on the 12 months ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise;

o it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
or in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts
are past due for a number of years. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries
made are recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on
the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
initially measured at fair value and financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair value, net
of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
payables, accruals, deposits and other payables, lease
liabilities and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in
profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial
liability and of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of
the financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.
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B E2021463A31HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.6 Financial instruments (continued)

(v)

(vi)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset
has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria
for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

4.7 Cash and cash equivalents

4.8

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represented cash and bank balances.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be enttled in exchange for those goods or
services, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue is after deduction of any trade discounts.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXEFTTHE @

4.8 Revenue recognition (Continued) 4.8 Y % B R (@)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the
goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s
performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference to
the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXEFTTHE @

4.8 Revenue recognition (Continued) 4.8 Y %= B R (@)

(i) Service income is recognised in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered. For the service
contract relates to routine services, the service income
will be recognised on a straight-line basis over the
contract terms as the work is performed. For services
that are provided on ad-hoc basis, service income is
recognised upon completion of the provision of such
ad-hoc services.

(i) Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

(i)  Rental income under operating leases is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms.

(iv)  Income from sales of goods is recognised at point in
time when the goods are delivered to customers and
title has passed.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the customers retain
retention money to secure the due performance of the
contracts. Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which
it is invoiced to the customer. If the considerations (including
advances received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the output method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXEFTTHE @

4.9 FTBH

4.9 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount
expected to be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty
related to income tax.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for initial recognition of assets
and liabilities that are not part of the business combination
which affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised,
provided that the deductible temporary differences are not
arises from initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction other than in a business combination that affects
neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected
manner in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability is
realised or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period, and
reflects any uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income tax levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.9 Income taxes (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

410 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

(i)

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to be
settled wholly before twelve months after the end of the
annual reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the
services are rendered by the employees.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Employee benefits (continued)

(iv) Long service payments

The Group’s net obligation in respect of long service
amounts payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods. Liabilities recognised in
respect of long service payment are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. The cost of providing the long service payment
liabilities is charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The long service payment
liabilities are determined by the recent remuneration of
the eligible employees based on the requirement of
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, and is reduced by
entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the
Group.

4.11 Impairment loss of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and interests in subsidiaries
are subject to impairment testing.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of these assets to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets’ carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXEFTTHE @

411 ESREERERESBE@®

411 Impairment loss of non-financial assets

(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

4.12 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is
deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

4.13 Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable and are recognised as other
revenue, rather than reducing the related expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4. EXEFTTHE @

414 BERSIAREE

4.14 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive as a
result of a past event, which will probably result in an outflow
of economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

4.15 Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The fair value of services received is determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the date of grant
and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity under the
heading of share option reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in the share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4., EREBFTBERm

(Continued)

4.16 Related parties 4.16 BB 7
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is @ (MBI TALZ  BIGZA L3k
related to the Group if that person: ZATZHEBRERNEERR
&
()  has control or joint control over the Group; () %= &l sk @ =6 AR
5B
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HASEBEEAFZE
7K
(i) is a member of the key management personnel of (i) ARAEAEEHARQF
the Group or the parent of the Company. N EEERE
(o)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following b) H7FA THEMIEHE  BNE
conditions apply: BEEANEE A E
()  The entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBEASEEEBR
same group (which means that each parent, —E£B8KE AR (A&
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the ERE RS/ I TIEER/N
others). EAGEY ) PAGE
ULE B &) o
(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the i) —HEBARS BB
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a R RN A= R
member of a group of which the other entity is a ¥X(HE5—EBERBEKE
member). RAIZEEETKE
AElZEE RASE
B
(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third iy MEEEHAER—F
party. ZTMAEEDRE-
(v)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and vy —HEBARE=FE
the other entity is an associate of the third entity. ERNEE2hE M3
—ERRZE=ZFE
BErEE AR -
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.16 Related parties (continued)

(b)

(Continued)

W)

(V)

(vii)

(i)

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in ().

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)

(i)

that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.17 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors are

determined following the Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” are
the same as those used in its financial statements prepared

under HKFRSs.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
of the Company are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ

from these estimates.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year is set out below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R Y AL

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B E2021463A31HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPT'ONS (Continued)

5.1

5.2

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge
where useful lives are different to those previously estimated,
or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.3.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.

Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9
across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future
cash flows when determining impairment losses and the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in
which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date
and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis.
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B E2021463A31HILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPT'ONS (Continued)

5.3

5.4

Provisions

When there is a probability that an outflow of economic
benefits will occur due to a present obligation resulting from a
past event, and that amount is reasonably estimate, a
corresponding amount of provision is recognised in the
financial statements. However, no provision is recognised for
costs that need to be incurred to operate in the future.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognised
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
who are the chief operating decision makers for the purpose of
resources allocation and assessment of performance, is the
financial information of the Group as a whole as reported under
HKFRSs. The Group is currently organised into two operating
divisions as follows:

(1)

@)

Environmental hygiene and related services

Airline catering support services
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4.17. For the
purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments other than tax
recoverable and cash and cash equivalents.

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
bank borrowings and tax payable.

— all profit or loss are allocated to operating segments other
than directors’ emoluments, finance costs, income tax
expense and certain other income and expenses incurred by
the head office.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Kk JEIEIREEBR A T
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. DHER @
BZEZ2021F3HA31HLEFEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021

Environmental Airline
hygiene and catering support
related services services Total
REFER M= £
1HEA R A F &R et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THE T THE T FHExT
Revenue g 2%
Sales to external customers HINBERFHE
— recognised over time — R EERER 506,010 - 506,010
— recognised at point in time — IR ER 23,977 - 23,977
529,987 — 529,987
Segment results D EBELE 91,448 = 91,448
Directors’ emoluments Y (11,397)
Finance costs =N (145)
Unallocated corporate income and & % it 2 & U A
expenses, net FHRY  FEE (3,226)
Profit before income tax KR BT 15 74 Rl s T 76,680
Income tax expense FEHAX (2,871)
Profit for the year F K A 73,809
Segment assets DEE E 151,928 517 152,445
Tax recoverable a] 4g B i T8 2,346
Cash and cash equivalents RWENIEELEEY 121,673
Total assets BB E 276,464
Segment liabilities HEEE 62,234 - 62,234
Bank borrowings HRITE K 5,544
Tax payable SRR E 4
Total liabilities BEEE 67,782
Other segment information Hih 5 &R
Depreciation E (5,538) - (5,538)
Additions to non-current assets JERENE E I 8,770 - 8,770
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. PIEE @
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE2020F3831BILLEE
Environmental Airline
hygiene and  catering support
related services services Total
REHER i 2= B 8K
18 A AR 75 & R BET
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THT FA&T
Revenue I 2=
Sales to external customers HINBEFHE
— recognised over time — LR HEER 520,371 33,093 553,464
— recognised at point in time — R ER 16,095 = 16,095
536,466 33,093 569,559
Segment results DEELE 38,787 2,313 41,100
Directors’ emoluments ExMe (11,776)
Finance costs Bl & B AN (316)
Unallocated corporate income and 7 2 it A & Yg A
expenses, net RHAX - FEE (2,859)
Profit before income tax b BT 15 74 A1 VA 26,149
Income tax expense FEHAX (5,447)
Profit for the year F 5 T 20,702
Segment assets DEEE 160,759 6,388 167,147
Tax recoverable a] Uy (=] % 1B 36
Cash and cash equivalents ReKBRSEEY 40,469
Total assets mEE 207,652
Segment liabilities DEBEE 61,177 2,659 63,836
Bank borrowings RITIE R 7,431
Tax payable FEH BB 1,612
Total liabilities BEEH 72,779
Other segment information Hih 2 HER
Depreciation e (4,839) — (4,839)
Additions to non-current assets JERENE B 1 3,489 — 3,489

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Kk JEIEIREEBR A T
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The Company is an investment holding company and the principal
place of the Group’s operation is in Hong Kong. For the purpose of
segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8, Hong Kong is
regarded as the Group’s place of domicile. All the Group’s revenue
and non-current assets are attributable to Hong Kong for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, being the single geographical
region.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location at
which the services were provided. All the Group’s revenue from
external customers is sourced from Hong Kong.

Revenue from customers which individually contributed 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue, are set out as follows:

EEAEL)
EFEB(ME2)

Customer A (note 1)
Customer B (note 2)

Notes:

(1) It is a customer for environmental hygiene and related services for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

() For the year ended 31 March 2021, revenue from this customer was less
than 10% of the Group’s revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, revenue of HK$33,095,000 was
generated from environmental hygiene and related services while revenue
of HK$25,539,000 was generated from airline catering support services
for this customer.
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS

Revenue represents the income from environmental hygiene and
related services and airline catering support services rendered.

(@ Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue
from major services. The Group’s revenue recognised within
the scope of HKFRS 15 are as follows:

Revenue: W 25
Environmental hygiene and related services
Airline catering support services

(b) As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the aggregated amount of
the transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contracts as follows:

Expected to be recognised within one year
Expected to be recognised after one year

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Kk JEIEIREEBR A T
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7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 7.
GA'NS (Continued)

() The Group’s other income and gains recognised during the
year are as follows:

Other income and gains: N NS
Bank interest income AT F B A
Sales of scrap materials BE R &

Reversal of impairment loss of trade B SRR IERE
receivables gtz el
Government subsidies (note) T 478 B (Bf &%)
Rental income He WA
Note:

The amounts represented the subsidies granted by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China under the Anti-epidemic Fund, which include () Employment
Support Scheme of HK$65,501,000 (2020: nil) in which the Group had to
commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses, and not reduce
employee head count below prescribed levels for a specified period of
time; and (i) Subsidy for Transport Trades of HK$340,000 (2020: nil).

The remaining of HK$750,000 (2020: nil) represented subsidies to the
Group to phasing out certain diesel motor vehicles.

The Group does not have other unfulfiled obligations relating to these
grants.

Wk EMEARKE @
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. m&E A
2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FBT
Interest on bank borrowings HITE IR 145 316
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 59 53
204 369
9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRFT{E % A& Al
Profit before income tax for the year has been arrived at after ERNB AT SN ENGR
charging/(crediting): GTA) :
2021 2020
2021 20204F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FAT
Auditor’s remuneration % ST BN &
— audit services — Bi R 600 560
— non-audit services — FEF IR 170 370
770 930
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses ERERINEFEEKA 14,920 15,020
Depreciation e 5,538 4,839
Loss on disposal of property, plant and LEME  WERLZHEZERE
equipment 8 B
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment loss B RBAEREBE
on trade receivables (Bt El), Bt (133) 243
Short-term lease expenses EHEERAX 335 863
Employee costs (including directors’ BERKAN(BREEZHDS) :
remuneration):
— Wages, salaries and allowances —I& FHe ki 309,024 313,416
— Retirement scheme contributions — RARET BIHE5K 12,292 13,147
321,316 326,563

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED kBB E BB R A 7
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FRIEHAX
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in accordance with two- RREFE B5FEHEERANER
tiered profits tax rate regime. The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable MR ETIREE AREBESERER
profits of a qualifying entity of the Group is taxed at 8.25% and the B 2,000,000 7 7T F& 2R B & ) 128.25%
assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 are taxed at 16.5% for 2 F R g AN 5 IR - T R 82,000,000 %
both years. T B JE RR R i A 3216.5% 2 Tt = B
I °
2020
20204F
HK$'000
FET
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax IR IR — BB EH 1,943 5,524
Current tax — under-provision in prior years ~ BIHAT{ I — B A FEHEE T L 44 87
Deferred taxation (note 22) B E IR (M 5E22) 884 (164)
2,871 5,447
Recongiliation between income tax expense and accounting profit st BnERMEAEN 2T
at applicable tax rate: i A ¥ B
2020
20204F
HK$’'000
AT
Profit before income tax B BT 15 %% Al i 7 76,680 26,149
Tax at applicable tax rate (note) 1% i A = w0 (P 53) 12,487 4,150
Tax effect of non-taxable income 078 R T B B 7 52 2 (11,009) —
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S R & 1,379 1,270
Under-provision in prior years BEFEBRET T 44 87
Tax concession HIAE (30) (60)
Income tax expense e X 2,871 5,447
Note: B & -
For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, Hong Kong Profits Tax of the B 220214 [ 2020F3 A31 H IEF Z’S =
qualifying entity of the Group is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered BEREBNTEN T‘Ef AR AR A 1% fﬁ P 4%
profits tax rates regime. The assessable profits of other Group entities in Hong Hlat & o AR E A F B E 8RR F
Kong are calculated at 16.5%. 1216.5% ) B R B BLIA ©
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MNEERGRAEEEMNE
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(@) Directors’ remuneration (@) EEf &
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and Discretionary scheme
Fees  other benefits bonus contributions Total
Be BER
ne H 38 A REETA BANGTEHER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FTAET TAET TET THR
Year ended 31 March 2021 #Z20216E3831 B ILEE
Executive directors: HTES:
Madam Ng Sing Mui SERTL - 3,612 300 181 4,093
Ms. Sze Tan Nei HE 5348 2 & - 2,893 241 145 3,279
Mr. Ang Ming Wah VL Epites - 1,491 124 18 1,633
Mr. Sze Wai Lun MR %4 - 1,084 2 18 1,192

Independent non-executive B EHTES

directors:
Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen R K 7t £ 240 = = - 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan BIERLE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung B LA 240 — - — 240
Mr. Wong Yat Sum =—-N\EAE 240 — _ _ 240
Mr. Chan Chun Sing PR AR 2 5k A 240 - - _ 240
Total & 1,200 9,080 755 362 11,397

Year ended 31 March 2020 #HZ2020F3A31HLLFE

Executive directors: HITES:

Madam Ng Sing Mui REFLT - 3,612 451 181 4,244
Ms. Sze Tan Nei i3 48 22 £ - 2,893 362 145 3,400
Mr. Ang Ming Wah HBELE - 1,491 186 18 1,695
Mr. Sze Wai Lun HE 12 fm 55 4 - 1,084 135 18 1,237

Independent non-executive B Y FETEE :

directors:

Mr. Yuen Ching Bor Stephen 5= 38 5t 4 240 - - = 240
Mr. Chung Koon Yan ERREE 240 - - = 240
Mr. Ma Kwok Keung SEEELE 240 — = — 240
Mr. Wong Yat Sum g—0OEE 240 — - — 240
Mr. Chan Chun Sing PR iR T A& 240 - - - 240
Total aat 1,200 9,080 1,134 362 11,776
No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended HE2021E3RA31BHILFEE #mE=
31 March 2021 (2020: nil). EREE B S (20204 : ) -

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Kk JEIEIREEBR A T
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MNEBEREHREEEMNEw
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EUEZSF AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the KEBRUZSME AT H
Group, four (2020: four) were directors of the Company PUfz (20204 : WUfiz) B A Al E
whose emoluments are included in note 11(a) above. The EOEME ISR EXHE11@) -
emoluments of the remaining one (2020: one) individual was RN — AL (2020 : —f71) AT H
as follows: B 2T
2021 2020
2021 % 20204F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e mhh REAAEF 699 606
Discretionary bonus [E=ReAAN 62 75
Retirement scheme contributions RARET B R 18 30
779 711
The remuneration paid to the above non-director highest paid ENFTLENIEEEESHFALTH
individual was within the following emolument band: HFMAR T ES & E :
2021 2020
20214 20204
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7% 7T % 1,000,000 % 7T ! 1 ! 1
During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no A £2021F N&2020F3 A31H IE
remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors of the FE ANEBVERADFEE
Company or any of the five highest paid employees as an ER AR EEFREM—{L
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as AT EB - E A E I A Sk i A AN
compensation for loss of office. EBRFNEREABBEE -
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The remuneration paid to the senior management of the
Group (other than the directors as disclosed in note 11(a)
above) for the year fell within the following emolument bands:

MNEENEREEEMEw@

c) EREEEME

FAECNTAKERRERE
(£ 3K RE11(a) P 3 58 0O E B BR
SMEVEMA R TIIM S EE

2021 2020
2021 & 20204
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A A
|
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7t & 1,000,000/% 7T ! 2 ! 2
12. DIVIDENDS 12. R E
(@ Dividends attributable to the year: @ AFEEREMERE:
2020
2020 FF
HK$’000
FHT

Final dividend proposed of HK5.9 cents
(2020: nil) per ordinary share

ERERT AR E
597811l (20204 : #)

35,400 ! =

The final dividend proposed after the reporting date for the
year ended 31 March 2021 is subject to shareholders’
approval in the forthcoming annual general meeting and has
not been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2021.

(b)  Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved
and paid during the year:

REZE2021F3831B IEFE 2
MEABREEZRT 2 RBRE
AFRERERREBEFARAS L&
BRRAER T EEE - BUER
20213 A31BER ARG -

b BEMBEERHERE X RAF
JE #HEAE RO A

2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year BEEERMNRSABRS | |
— Nil (2020: HK1.67 cents) per —SRLTAEKRZ T ‘
ordinary share (20204F : 1.67 781l | - 10,020
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 # Z=2021F3 A31H L FE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. S R&EF
The calculation of earnings per share is based on the earnings SERENIEIEREMBEE AN A #H
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average B AFEL A & B 34T X m A% A9 hn s
number of ordinary shares in issue during the respective years. FHHEHEHE o
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on BRERNEKESAZRTIERIEATER
the following information: =+
2020
20204F
HK$’000
THETT
Earnings & F
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 2 A 71 ¥k A A J& {5 )& FI 73,809 20,702
2020
20204
'000
TR
Number of shares ;&g q=|
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 5t & & A% £ 78 2 F1| &9 3 38 f%
for the purpose of basic earmnings per share IN#EF 39 2 600,000 600,000
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: E#BZHZTER 2T L.
— Share options — B 6 6
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Bt 5t & & A& # 8 & 7| 1 & 38 AR
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share A4 ¥ 3 & 600,006 600,006
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 A EZ2021FE3A31IB IEtEE N & &
March 2021 is based on the profit for the year attributable to EARBANTIBEARXAGES AFEL
owners of the Company of HK$73,809,000 (2020: HK$20,702,000) £ A F73,809,000% IT (2020 4F :
and on the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 20,702,000 7T ) & B = 202143 A 31
600,000,000 (2020: 600,000,000) in issue during the year ended HIFEEDRTETRENNEEHE
31 March 2021. 600,000,000 f% (2020 4 : 600,000,000
B3 -
Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March 2021 and EHE2021F F2020FE3HA31B IEEE
2020 are calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ZEREERANEBEEEE T E
ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive M EER % e BT LB NETE

ordinary shares. B B -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. )%  HERR®E

Office Other
furniture  Machinery properties
Leasehold Leasehold and and Motor  leased for
improvement land Buildings equipment equipment vehicles own use Total
BARE HittH A
HELE HEL# B2 KRB BBERRE AE HEWE At
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THT TEr TEx TET TRr TEn TEr  TEx
Cost R AR
At 1 April 2019 R2019%4A1H 3,011 21,780 12,792 3,107 10,490 12,970 — 64,150
Additions nNE - - - 72 725 279 2,413 3,489
Disposals & - - - (20) (385) = = (405)
At 31 March 2020 and 202043 A31H K&

1 April 2020 202064 A1A 3,011 21,780 12,792 3,159 10,830 13,249 2,413 67,234

Additions NE — — — 2,114 883 5,773 — 8,770
Disposals HE = = = (560) (738) (969) - (2,267)
At 31 March 2021 R®2021E3A31H 3,011 21,780 12,792 4,713 10,975 18,053 2,413 73,737
Accumulated deprecation 2317 &
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4A1H 2,410 4,029 2,367 1,807 7,326 10,210 — 28,149
Provided for the year FREE 601 628 369 311 1,302 1,025 603 4,839
Written back on disposals 7 i} & 5 # [a] - - - (16) (384) - - (400)
At 31 March 2020 and 20203 A31 B &

1 April 2020 202054 81H 3,011 4,657 2,736 2,102 8244 11,235 603 32,588
Provided for the year FREE - 628 369 330 1,320 1,684 1,207 5,538
Written back on disposals 7 i £ B # @] - - - (485) (733) (969) - (2,187)
At 31 March 2021 ®2021%F3A31H 3,011 5,285 3,105 1,947 8,831 11,950 1,810 35,939
Net book value REFEE
At 31 March 2021 R2021E3 731 H = 16,495 9,687 2,766 2,144 6,103 603 37,798
At 31 March 2020 R2020%F3A31H — 17,123 10,056 1,067 2,586 2,014 1,810 34,646

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

KIEZERERBRAF
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

B E2021463A31HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the leasehold land and buildings are
pledged as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings and banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 20).

Right-of-use assets

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

14. % BERRE@m

B &L

Ownership interests in leasehold land held forown 35 {E B MBS +#h 2
use FTE R
Other properties leased for own use EMmEAEEDE

The followings are the expenses in relation to leases recognised in profit
or loss:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by class

of underlying asset: MITEER :
— leasehold land held for own use — EEEHENEE L
— other properties leased for own use — HtEREEWE

Interest on lease liabilities (note 8)

Expenses relating to short-term leases

Aggregate undiscounted commitments for short-
term leases

I E

No addition to right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 March 2021
(2020: additions to right-of-use assets were HK$2,413,000. The additions
are non-cash transaction.).

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of HK$1,380,000 during the
year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$690,000). Details of the maturity
analysis of lease liabilities are set out on note 19.

HEEERE (HEs)

2 HATE B A R BE IR A E AR R

R 2021F %2020F3A31H i & &
WMEREBFERFIEARNEBRITER
RAEEER ZBTHE 2 ER
20) ©

EREEE

REBEERNE T NEREEEDN
REDFEDIFTAT :

2020
202046
HK$’'000
FAT

16,495
603

17,123
1,810

EERSTEANAE M OX M
mF -

RIAREERRE D WEREEE

2020
20204

HK$’000

FHET

628 628
1,207 603
59 53
335 863
127 116

HZE2021F3A31BILFE  FHEE
ERABARE (0205  FREEERE
#EE 5241300087 - ZERE BIER
ERH )

HE2021F3ABLEE A& E
HE RS n L 48 % A1,380,000% 7T
(20204F : 90,0008 L) - EREAFA E &
B2 RO TFEBHRHE19
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15. INVENTORIES 15. 78

2021 2020

20214 20204F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FTHET FBT

Consumables, at cost SHFEm (R A) ! 182 ! 279

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. E Z EE W F 1B

2021 2020

20214 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade receivables, net of loss allowance B 5 RRGRTE - Nk BB EE ! 106,115 ! 124,503

Trade receivables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both RREFE  EZEKZKEBHNUNBE T
years. RS

The credit terms of the trade receivables are ranged from 0 to 60 ZEoRBRENEERERARZAH

days (2020: 0 to 60 days) from the date of billing. Further details on # D F0KR E=60K (20204 : 0K £60

the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade R -BRAAEECEEBRRREZEK

receivables are set out in note 30(b). REFEAEERBR 2E —FPFEH

R Bt 5 30(b) ©

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the invoice date HERSHR ERNBEEAHNES

and net of loss allowance as of the end of the reporting period is as JEW R IE (MK BEEG) RE DN
follows: mR

2021 2020

20214 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Within one month —@AAR 44,185 46,809

One to three months —z==1@A 46,936 59,910

More than three months =@AMNE 14,994 17,784

106,115 124,503

\/
\/

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED kBB E BB R A 7
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17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITSAND OTHER 17. ({1 B - RE$ R HME

RECEIVABLES W 1g
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&E T T T
Non-current: FERE :
Prepayments for purchase of property, plant B EWE  HMEKLEE 2
and equipment TR FRIE 651 —
Current: B
Prepayments for consumables SHFE A TR 1B 140 124
Other prepayments H At T8 R E 5,516 4,924
Deposits b ey 710 746
Other receivables H tn & W 5008 1,333 1,925
7,699 7,719
=h
18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 18. EZ R HE M BN FKIE
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#& T FET
Trade payables (note (a)) B EMNFE(WE@) 14,430 14,737
Accrued staff costs fEst B TRk A 25,979 25,694
Other accrued expenses (note (b)) Hfh FE AT R 2 (MT#E (o) 4,514 7,195
Other payables H fth & 1< ;I8 623 467
Deposits "<& 568 639
31,684 33,995
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HZE2021F3 A3 B ILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

(@)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Trade payables are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars for both years.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date as of the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

18. EZ R HMEMNRKE @

RWEFE  BHENKREHUNET

s

MHREREDTAOT

2021 2020

20214 2020 %

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Within one month —@E AR 9,099 10,494
One to three months —==f@A 4,749 3,614
More than three months =@EAMNE 582 629
14,430 14,737

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, other accrued expenses mainly
represented the accrued untaken paid leave.

KIEZERERBRAF

20214 202043 A31 8 » Eth fEat
A EBEEARZRTHESE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 #; Z=2021 43 A31H L FE

19. LEASE LIABILITIES 19. HE&E
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of TRIIRANEBRERZHEAES
the Group’s lease liabilities at the end of the year: TAELHRHBER
2020
20204
Present
Present value of
o \{a!ue of Minimum minimum
Minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEAE BREAE =EEE =EHEE
1§ HRRE 5% NRIEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T & T FH& T FET TET
Not later than one year TER—F 460 455 1,380 1,321
Later than one year and —FEHEBTERRME
not later than two years - - 460 455
460 455 1,840 1,776
Less: future interest expenses & : & & K B 5 X (5) = (64) -
Present value of lease liabilities 7 & & &R & 455 455 1,776 1,776
Analysis as reporting MEREMNDWTAE
purpose as:
Current liabilities mEAaE 455 1,321
Non-current liabilities R AR - 455
455 1,776
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20. BANK BORROWINGS

Bank loans

All of the Group’s bank loans as at 31 March 2021 and 2020
contained a repayable on demand clause and therefore the entire
bank loan balances for both years have been classified as current

liabilities.

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors of
the Company considered it is unlikely that the banks will exercise
its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the
Company considered that the bank loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled payment dates set out in the loan
agreements. An analysis of the bank loans in accordance with the

g

RITER

contractual repayment terms are summarised in the table below:

Analysed based on scheduled repayment

terms set out in the loan agreements,
into:

Within one year

In the second year
In the third to fifth years, inclusive

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

—FR
F_F

20. SR 1T B

2020
20204
HK$’000
FBT

5,544 7,431

K& B 72021 4F &2020F3 A31 H K
FTEHRITEREBIEERE BRI
EAEmEFENEBRITEREHE
DEAERBARE-

ERAKEENTHMNRR ARAEF
R |RITTAAENBERIANE
R RARBEERR RITEFHR
BEEXWBEMEAAE KB HE
e TRPAMIZA WEKBET R
EROH

R 5 & K 15 3 A W A0 G BIB X
SETH DA

EF=FE2FLF(BHER

ES)

KIEZERERBRAF

2020
20204

HK$’000

TH& T

1,498 1,880
1,537 1,498
2,509 4,053
5,544 7,431
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20. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 20. SR AT f& A
Notes: B &L
i) All bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. As at 31 [0} FT A& R 17 18 5 PA 7 TT 5t B » 120214
March 2021, the bank borrowings carried floating interest rates at 1.84% 3A31R8 « R 1T & K FT M &9 % B FIl =
(2020: ranged from 2.60% to 3.56%) per annum. BT F1.84FE (2020F : N T2.60E =
3.56[F) °
(i)  As at 31 March 2021, the bank borrowings were secured by the (i)  M2021F3A318 - RITIERHAE
properties held by the Group with net carrying amount of approximately BT 5 BR T )% (8 4926,182,0007 7T Z ¥ %
HK$26,182,000. fEHEA -
As at 31 March 2020, the bank borrowings were secured by the R2020F3A31H ' RITERBALAE
properties held by the Group with net carrying amount of approximately BT £ BR ™ % (B 927,179,000 7T 2 ¥
HK$27,179,000 and an unlimited corporate guarantee executed by the E¥LRARNBEIIERS QB ERT
Company. K48 o
21. PROVISION FOR LONG SERVICE 21. EHRIE & B 18
PAYMENTS
2020
20204
HK$’000
FHET
Liabilities for employee benefit comprise: EERAAGBEIE:
Long service payments accrual, classified as  REIRGE S EBAER  2E A
non-current liabilities FRBEE 13,687 12,234
Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is BIESBSERBIEL ~A"EBEEET
obliged to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment BERTMRIIEREAAEERTKE
in certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed LPRERKHNETREE SN —S=
at least five years of service with the Group. The amount payable is He BY Ny HEYEREZEZREE
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and 254 RIREEH IR IR A
is reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement EEEARSARAEBFBHRIFLEY
plans that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The THERE. NEE Y ETB DI [ EE A
Group does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining ABEMBTEEREES -
obligations.
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22. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 22 EXEBRIEEF

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements
during the current and prior year are as follows:

As at 1 April 2019
Credited for the year (note 10)

As at 31 March 2020 and at 1 April 2020
Charged for the year (note 10)

As at 31 March 2021

23. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Shares of HK$0.01 each

At 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 and
31 March 2021

Issued and fully paid:
At 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020 and
31 March 2021

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

R2019F 4 A1H
FRETA (FFEE10)

72020F 3 31 H KA 20205F4 A1 H
F B (KT EE10)

720213 A31H

23. A&

Number of
shares

IR &8

EE
AR EE0.01 %5 7L A AR 5

MR2020F3 A31H + 20204
4F18 K20214E3A31H 10,000,000,000

E#TRHARE -
MR2020F3 A31H 20204
4818 k202143 A31H 600,000,000

KIEZERERBRAF

RAFERBEFECHERBELEHRR
BEREHZFBOT

Accelerated tax
depreciation

MEBIRTE

HK$'000
TR

1,258
(164)

1,094
884

1,978

HK$’000
TER

100,000

6,000
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B E2021463A31HILFE

24. RESERVES

Group

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves for the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 105. The natures and
purposes of reserves within equity are as follows:

(@)

Share premium account of the Company represents the
excess of the proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares
received over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued.

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
group reorganisation and represented the difference between
the consideration under the group reorganisation and the
nominal value of the share capital of the subsidiaries then
acquired.

The share option reserve represents the cumulative expenses
recognised on the granting of share options to the eligible
participants over the vesting period.

24, #1E

rEE

A £ B B 22021 F £2020F 3 531 H
EEREZRHEEHFBEHMRE105
B7ieEEYRAN - REREZ
HERBHNT

(@)

ARB 2B EEBREETE
PR PR W BR 2 PR S SRIR R AR R
BERTRNDEENIRLD -

A
Gl

AEBEEHERIBHEBEAE
£ HESEEHR N RESR
ERAKEMEARKRARELZ
E® -

BREEEENRBEN AL
Fr g K IR RS IR R 2 2
% -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

24. RESERVES (Continued)

Company

At 1 April 2019 R20195481H

Loss fortheyearand FAEEEFERNE
total comprehensive [ Uk %5 42 58
income for the year

Final dividend paid B RERR B

Share options lapsed B 5k &k i A% #E

At 31 March 2020 and 42020563831 H
1 April 2020 20204 H1H

FREARFRE
B 42 25 48 BR

Profit for the year and
total comprehensive
income for the year

At 31 March 2021 R2021563H31H

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

B E2021463A31HILFE

Share
premium
R 17 45 {8
HK$’000
FET

48,177

48,177

48,177

24. #&mw
7NN

Share
Merger option
reserve reserve
aEOtREE BRERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
(10) 34
— (4)
(10) 30
(10) 30

KIEZERERBRAF

Retained
profits

= B % F
HK$’000
FHETT

12,142

(1,753)
(10,020)

373

35,061

35,434

Total
et
HK$’000
FAT

60,343

(1,753)
(10,020)

48,570

35,061

83,631



Notes to the Financial Statements

B 75 R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(i)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the sole shareholder of the Company (the “Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme”). The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is a
share incentive scheme and is established to aid the
Company in retaining key and senior employees of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme is 192,000. No share option may be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme if this will result in
the limit being exceeded.

The eligible participants include any full-time or part-time
employees of any member of the Group and any executive
directors of the Company.

Upon acceptance of the share option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.

On 23 February 2017, the Company has authorised to grant
to 6 eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of
192,000 shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. On
the same date, the Company has granted share options to 6
eligible participants to subscribe for an aggregate of 192,000
shares.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular
share option offered under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
shall be equal to the offer price of HK$0.42 per share.

25. B R 2 =

(i)

BEXALHBENERE

a2

R2017E2 8218 » KA A M —
R A—EHEREE ([E X
AHABEAERETS]) 7R
AHABEERERESE A —ER
DTS HR T E EH B
AR BBAEBREIERS R
EE -

EREE XA E A ERERT
2R LA T B AR TE M Al
TR R (D B £ R &192,000
% o il AR 48 B R A B 3 & AT A
P T B 9% ) BE AR S 8 BN R
B BN R AR o

RERSEERBEAEEEMAK
BERBIZEMEZBERBEER N
RARBZEFMATES -

EREARERBRERSBARE
BARERAARRAZMIBTHES
RE-

R201742 8238 ARQ A 2 &%
AR IR B R A B E AT B AR
FFERERA B/ EER LA
2B A ££192,000 0% B% 15 ° 1A [
H ARQRA6REAEERLES
i A] 3R BE A& ££192,000 8% % 19
RO B AR o

BB R A 73 E AT B R AT 8108
TR 2 AT 45 5 R A 2 B fn
RBEREXEETR042B T

R
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The share options granted to each grantee under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to exercise the share
options granted during the option period under the Pre-IPO

Share Option Scheme in the following manners:

(@ 50% of the share options granted to grantee under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or after
the first date on which dealings in the shares of the
Company commenced on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Date”) to the date immediately before the tenth

anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(b)  50% of the share options granted to grantee under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time on or after
the date falling on the first anniversary of the Listing
Date to the date immediately before the tenth

anniversary of the Listing Date.

The share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme are not transferable and share options not exercised
within the exercise period will lapse and cease to be of further
effect. All the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme shall lapse automatically and not be
exercisable (to the extent not already exercised) on the expiry

of the option period.

Share options granted prior to the expiration of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme but not yet exercised at that time shall
continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Kk JEIEIREEBR A T

25, i IR 5T & ()

(i)

BARXAABEBRERERE
at Bl )

RIBE B IR AR % S A RERER &
A& AR ARG 2 BRESE T
152 55 4 ) LA R 51 75 =050 B R 1
AR 1% & R X 79 3 & AT B AR AT
BTTER L Z B

@ MBREEBXARAEENER
Bt A R AR BN R
BMXHmABEEREZER
TEPABDRZREER
EETRABE+EBFA
Al 2 B 5 B ) BE A () A 8%
AR HB50% 88 I+ &

b REBXRAFMEEHEK
BB AR LTRSS —
AEFRERXZIEEER
EETHHETERASA
Al 2 B 5 B ) BE A () A 8
AHX H50% i i % -

BRAFBEEMBREEET
R zBEERERTIEE kKX
7158 AP i AR T {2 2 B AR A i 5k
METBRBERS - BRAME
ERBREE A NRHZAA
BRESKEBREDBRERS A
B R R AR AT B (PA R R AT 18
ERR) -

RER AR E R B RS E
A B R B R T A R AR
BEEBEERIRBBEERAFRE
SR BRERT &I A FATRE -
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

The following tables disclose details of movements of share
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

Year ended 31 March 2021

baziy

25, IR 8l

(i)

BXAPRBENBRE
& &l )
TEBERBEERAHEER
BRESEBE I BRIESD
EA

BZE2021F3A31ALEE

Director 2=
Ang Ming Wah it BF 2= Tranche 1 32,000 - - - 32,000
£t
Tranche 2 32,000 — — — 32,000
E-#t
Employees &8
In aggregate = Tranche 1 52,000 - - - 52,000
%t
Tranche 2 52,000 - - - 52,000
Eo#t
Total 485t 168,000 - - - 168,000
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 25. R RS 8l
(i) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) () BEX BB EABERE
=t &l ()
Year ended 31 March 2020 BIE2020F3A31HILFE
Number of share options
AR A

At Granted  Exercised Lapsed At

Share option 1 April during during during 31 March

type 2019 the year the year the year 2020

BRE 20195 #2020

¥R 4818 FARY FARTE FAKXKX 3A31HE

Director =
Ang Ming Wah it BF 2 Tranche 1 32,000 — — — 32,000
£
Tranche 2 32,000 — — — 32,000
g4
Employees Ea
In aggregate B Tranche 1 64,000 — — (12,000) 52,000
£
Tranche 2 64,000 — — (12,000) 52,000
£
Total st 192,000 — — (24,000) 168,000

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED kBB E BB R A 7
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of the outstanding share options granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Share option type Date of grant

25, g R T &l

(i)

Exercisable period

BARXABEBERERE
k-0 )

RIEE R A% E [ BB ES
BRMZHARITEBRESS
m

Exercise price

BREER A TEHE THEE
Tranche 1 23 February 2017 16 March 2017 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
E—# 201742 A23H 201793 A16 B £2027 3 A15H 0.427% 7T
Tranche 2 23 February 2017 16 March 2018 to 15 March 2027 HK$0.42
i 201792 A23H 2018%F 3 A 16 H 2202743 A 15 H 0.427% 7T

All the 168,000 (2020: 168,000) outstanding share options
are exercisable as at 31 March 2021.

The share options outstanding at 31 March 2021 had
weighted average exercise price of HK$0.42 (2020: HK$0.42)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.96
years (2020: 6.96 years).

Share Option Scheme

On 21 February 2017, a share option scheme was adopted
by the then sole shareholder (the “Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to eligible participants of the Group and to promote
the success of the business of the Group.

(ii)

M 202143 A31H 168,000 5
(2020 4F : 168,00017 ) ™4 & 17 f&
2B RE R EB A T ATE o

MR2021F3A31H M ATHE 2B
BEREINEFII1T(EE B0.4278 T
(20204 : 0427 70) * E n#EF
5 82 & #) F B & 5.964F (2020
£ :6.96%F) °

BRESE

R2017FE2 8218 - &M — &
BRER 4 — 18 B8 A A 5T &I ([ BB R 4
EEDE

BhEEsaERsI RRERE
FHAR RAKEAERSHE
ERPREIIEBARESHAEE
EBaIEE -
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The eligible participants include any employee (full-time or
part-time), director, consultant, adviser, substantial
shareholder, distributor, contractor, supplier,
customer, business partner or service provider of the Group.
The basis of eligibility of any participant to the grant of any
option shall be determined by the Company’s board of
director (the “Board”) (or as the case may be, the independent
non-executive directors) from time to time on the basis of his
contribution or potential contribution to the development and

growth of the Group.

The subscription price of a share respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price solely determined by the Board and notified to a
participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
option, which must be a business day; (i) the average of the
closing prices of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
option; and (i) the nominal value of a share of the Company

on the date of grant of the option.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
seven days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an

option is HK$1.
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company as from the
adoption date (excluding, for this purpose, shares issuable
upon exercise of options which have been granted but have
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company)
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of all the shares in issue
as at the Listing Date. Therefore, it is expected that the
Company may grant options in respect of up to 60,000,000
shares (or such numbers of Shares as shall result from a sub-
division or a consolidation of such 60,000,000 Shares from
time to time) to the participants under the Share Option
Scheme.

The 10% limit as mentioned above may be refreshed at any
time by approval of the shareholders in general meeting
provided that the total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at
the date of approval of the refreshed limit. Options previously
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company (including those outstanding,
cancelled or lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the refreshed 10% limit.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group at any time
shall not exceed 30% of the issued shares of the Company
from time to time. No share options shall be granted under
any schemes of the Company (including the Share Option
Scheme) if this will result in the 30% limit being exceeded.

25, i IR 5T & ()
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25. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(ii) Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares issued and which fall to be issued
upon exercise of the share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group (including both exercised and outstanding options) to
each grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of offer
to grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date of offer to grant. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to

shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

In addition, any grant of an option to a Director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company (or any
of their respective close associates) must be approved by the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the grantee of the
option). Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director (or any
of their respective close associates) will result in the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company in any 12-month period up to and
including the date of grant representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the shares in issue; and having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the Shares at the date of each grant,
in excess of HK$5,000,000, such further grant of share
options will be subject to, in addition to the approval of

shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

No share option under the Share Option Scheme has been

granted since its adoption.
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26.

27.

B E2021463A31HILFE

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed in Hong Kong. The
MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employers
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan
vest immediately.

The retirement scheme cost recognised in profit or loss represents
contributions paid or payable to the MPF scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rule of the MPF scheme. As at 31 March 2021
and 2020, the Group had no significant obligation apart from the
contributions as stated above and there is no forfeited contribution
arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme and
which were available to reduce contributions payable.

COMMITMENTS

(i) Operating lease commitments

The minimum lease payments receivable under non-
cancellable operating lease of the Group were as follows:

26.

27.

The Group as lessor AEBEREEA
Within one year —F A

Lease are negotiated for term of 1 year.

BERIKEF

AEBBREZTBCRAEAE S
EHEBY  ABEBBREREZLAHMED
BestBl((REeta)) -aEEst
EAHBYSTATENTHEERR
KRetdl- BERESTE BEERHE
EESENERZTEHAERERHA
WARS% BT ABEBEKRARNLER
30,0007 7T BT #8 PR © 7% 5T 2] A 4 5} 8D
BrE B o

REZBERANERARTEXNEAEAEE
LSt eI R AA TR RmRiE
SERIEIE X EN A HERIE - ©
20214 N 2020F3 A31H © % £ X AT
R BRIESN  AE B W E A E
AEFE BNMERAESREHEKEF
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27. COM MITM ENTS (Continued)

(ii) Capital commitments

27. & IE @)

Contracted but not provided for: B

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

(i) EAREE
2021 2020
2021 5 20204
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiHx T
4948 K -

| |
| |
BENE eSS ‘ ‘
| 1,520 | —

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

28. BERFRS

0

(i)

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no other significant transaction
with related parties for the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.

The remunerations of key management personnel, which are
the directors of the Company during the year, were as
follows:

()

(i)

Bréxe B s Rk H 30 o Pk 8
F G B E20214F &202043 A
JIEBEFE AEBEHEEME
KBEBHRS °

AEE TEEEER/RARAE
FOREZFMIRET

2021 2020

2021 & 20204

HK$’000 HK$’'000

F#& T THE T

Short-term employee benefits HHEEERA 11,035 11,414
Retirement scheme contributions RORET B 362 362
11,397 11,776
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29. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 20. EXREE
The Group’s capital management objectives are to safeguard the AREBHNEAETEBZARELAEEH
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide BHERKENEE N LAAKRE R E MR
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, to =B FERE RGN #EREE
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital BAREE BREANKANE T IFENE
and to support the Group’s stability and growth. METENRER -
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital AEBREBRT THENLREEEE R
structure, taking into consideration the future capital requirements g RBEAREFBRKHNERESNK
of the Group, to ensure optimal returns to shareholders. PATER B IR B 25 R & (B B 5f o
For capital management purpose, the directors of the Company MEAREEREMmMS AR 2a=FR
regard the total equity presented on the consolidated statement of AR KT 25 B 48 K A
financial position as capital. BN o
2020
20204
HK$’'000
FAET
Bank borrowings RITE K 5,544 7,431
Total debt FEN=R 5,544 7,431
Total equity KA 208,682 134,873
Gearing ratio BERBELX 0.03times {Z | 0.06 times f&
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its use
of financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include credit risk,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk and fair value risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarter, in close co-operation with the directors. The overall
objectives in managing financial risks focus on securing the Group’s
short to medium term cash flows by minimising its exposure to
financial markets.

It is not the Group’s policy to actively engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. It identifies ways to
access financial markets and monitors the Group’s financial risk
exposure. Regular reports are provided to the directors of the
Company.

(@) Summary of financial assets and liabilities
by category

0. it % & bz & 2

AEEZERNAERELEBRERNA
REEHPERERTAMEEZE
MER - MEEREREEERR -
nBELRAR MEXEABREQFE
& o

MERREEBASERBLHAE
B BEBEENZEYEEMAZES -
EEVHRRNAEBFERETER
AEBNPEHAERE EHAE
ARPESRT ISR -

AEBO BRI IFRIRE B &M iEE
REEEcRIA -HYEXBELR
MEREEAKEMBRARN LA
YRARNRBEFTRIEHRRS -

() ZEREINEMEE
REEHME

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

2020
20204F
HK$’000
FAET
Financial assets TREE
Amortised cost: 2 B SH X AR 51 BR
Trade receivables B 5 e WK IE 106,115 124,503
Deposits and other receivables R4 N H b fE W 3k 18 2,043 2,671
Cash and cash equivalents HERBREZEEY 121,673 40,469
229,831 167,643
Financial liabilities tEEE
Amortised cost: 2 B S X AR 51 BR
Trade payables Z 5 BT RIE 14,430 14,737
Accruals, deposits and other payables JEETER e hEAM
JE 7t R IE 31,684 33,995
Bank borrowings |ITHEK 5,544 7,431
Lease liabilities HEAE 455 1,776
52,113 57,939
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  30. Bt 7% /&, B& & B8 ()

(b) Credit risk (b) EER B

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributed to its trade and
other receivables and cash and bank balances. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis and follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk with two
customers with trade receivables of HK$44,613,000 (2020:
two customers of HK$40,436,000) as at 31 March 2021.

For trade receivables, the Group reassesses the lifetime
expected credit losses at the end of the reporting period to
ensure the adequate impairment losses are made for
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of default
occurring since initial recognition. In this regard, management
of the Group considers that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group applies provision matrix to measure the expected
credit losses. As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the expected
loss rates applied in the provision matrix are determined with
reference to the debtors’ characteristics, including historical
actual loss on the trade receivables and information specific
to the debtors as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtors operate. The weighted-
average expected loss rates ranging from 0.08% to 1.37%
(2020: 0.10% to 1.85%) were applied to trade receivables.

AEENEERRIZRLANE
B REMBUKENERE M
RITHEBRAER - EEECRE
—EFERR ZFEERRR
FEKEEEE T ARIMRET
B AW E B EAE T o

R2021E3A31H  AEEEA
SR EERR MEEFHNE
5 FE W 3 I8 A 44,613,000/ JT
(20204 : M % & 40,436,000
L) °

PEZEEKEMS  AEER
BEMREHFH2HEHEE
B 18 - PARE{R B 1) 15 B 78 A 2R 2
A 32 49 7T B 1 BX [ B R 8 N
fEH RSB E B R EE - LUt
FOASBEERERR AKEH
EERBBERD

RNEEEREEEME =8
ZEE 8 - 7120214 K202043
A 318 -« FE AR E R TE
BEEDNE2ZEE ANEE
BRESBERFENBTERS
BREBAZERE R RES
AFTRZEBERRZE 2 ER ME
TE o N F0.08% E 1.37%(20204F :
0.10% % 1.85%) ¥ 78 B &5 48 == A1
BIEHHERNE S EIGRIEA -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  30. Bt 7% /&, B& & B2 ()

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) 5 B & k2 a0

As at 31 March 2021
R2021F3H31H
Average
expected Gross
credit loss carrying Loss

rate amount allowance

T FEH
FEBAX BREAE EERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT

Not yet past due &) 7 #80 B 0.09% 43,447 39
Less than one month past due AR —@EA 0.08% 45,884 36
One to three months past due mE—=={@A 0.46% 7,755 36
More than three months past due BEI={E A E 1.34% 9,264 124

106,350 235

As at 31 March 2020
20203 A31H

Average Gross
expected credit carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
£ 5 78 B

EEBEX FRmE 4 1E EREE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THTT THTT

Not yet past due & 7 781 2R 0.10% 47,122 47
Less than one month past due wmH LR —1E A 0.10% 59,649 57
One to three months past due mE—E=={EA 0.27% 6,586 18
More than three months past due BHI=EA U E 2.14% 11,514 246

124,871 368

 /
\/
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  30. 1 % & B B 12 ()

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) 5 B & B2 ()

For other receivables, the Group has assessed and
concluded that the expected credit loss for these receivables
is insignificant based on the risk of default of those
counterparties under 12-month ECL approach. Thus, no loss
allowance was recognised as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

The credit risk for cash and bank balances is considered
negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with
high quality external credit ratings.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured by collateral

or other credit enhancement.

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables is as follows:

REMERZEmMS  ERE S
EARE  AEEETHGBLES
tERRERIEBEI2EABHEE
BERE EHEEEBYHZEE
WRIEI A EE - & it 0 722021
F 202043 A 31 H I £ /& R
B -

B RART R B M 12 B A R AT I
RETH EANFAASHEE
SR EETR BARFEEN
81T -

AEENEREEMEREERY
HHEHMEEIREETER-

B 5 6 i 308 > 59 B R
m

Balance at 1 April 2019 M2019F4 A1 8 2 & & 125
Impairment loss recognised during the year FRERZBEEE 243
Balance at 31 March 2020 MR2020%3 A31 B 2 &% 368
Reversal of impairment loss during the year B O FAER B EEE (133)
Balance at 31 March 2021 R2021 3 A31 B 2 & 235
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  30. Bt 7% /&, B& & B2 ()

(c) RBE <R

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able
to meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities.
The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade and other payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with bank covenants, to
ensure the Group maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major banks and
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting date) and the

mBE © R R BN B S EE T
REESRABEHENEENA
BEE ASEEREGELZS
REMENRARERERTH
MR ESRR  BAREER
TRETEEH -

AEENBRBEREEERS
BeHmRKRERRTHEENEGR
B A RER N 6% [ 4 15 58 2 Y
ReRBEINEIBZERRTEE
RMBEESEANCITNRER
B AR EE SRR REHN
MBELTK -

TRHAPAEESRBERERS
HRNBTEOINRABR HE
RAMBERRE(BERAS
A R Bl (fis 2307 B ) 3R B e
& B HEIM IR T ARG EH R F B K

B)EASEARAXNNRR
BHH-

earliest date the Group can be required to pay.

Total
contractual Within one
Carrying undiscounted yearoron More than

amount amount demand one year
EHE
REEHRE R—FAH
REE Wz BREXR —F Pk
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE R TH& T FET
At 31 March 2021 720213 H31H
Trade payables B 5 N FIE 14,430 14,430 14,430 -
Accruals, deposits and ~ FEEIEF - H& K&
other payables H it jE B 31,684 31,684 31,684 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 455 460 460 -
Bank borrowings RITER 5,544 5,671 5,671 -
: 52,113 52,245 52,245 —
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)  30. Bt 7% /&, B& & B8 ()

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) REE S R @)

Total
contractual Within one
Carrying  undiscounted year or on More than

amount amount demand one year
BEETAY
REERIE R—FRAK
REE k] REK —F N E
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA& T FAET FET
At 31 March 2020 7A2020F3 A31H
Trade payables & 5 &N IE 14,737 14,737 14,737 —
Accruals, depositsand ~ JEEtE R - K& R
other payables H b & 15 3B 33,995 33,995 33,995 —
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,776 1,840 1,380 460
Bank borrowings RITER 7,431 7,611 7,611 —
57,939 58,183 57,723 460
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the EZEERBAEFNT KR KA
directors of the Company considered it is unlikely that the BEERA BT TKITERE
banks will exercise its discretion to demand immediate BRVANEBER - RRAIZEEFER
repayment. The directors of the Company considered that B RITEREEE TR
the bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the WE XSSt a8
scheduled payment dates set out in the loan agreements 1818 -
which are summarised in the table below:
More than one More than
Total contractual Less than one year two years
Carrying undiscounted yearoron butlessthan  but less than
amount amount demand two years five years
2 A
AERTIE -FRY® —FHUEE WENLE
REE B REX PRME SREF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THT THET THL
At 31 March 2021 2021 E3A31H 5,544 5,812 1,624 1,624 2,564
At 31 March 2020 R202053A31H 7,431 7,873 2,061 1,624 4,188
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B E2021463A31HILFE

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(d)

(e)

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from variable rate bank
balances and bank borrowings. Exposure to interest rate risk
exists on those balances subject to floating interest rate when
there are unexpected adverse interest rate movements. The
Group’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk, working
within an agreed framework, to ensure that there are no
unduly exposures to significant interest rate movements and
rates are approximately fixed when necessary.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for bank borrowings at the end
of the year. The analysis is prepared assuming amounts of
these financial instruments outstanding at the end of the year
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points
increase or decrease in the prevailing rates of relevant banks
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower for
variables rate bank borrowings, with all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$23,000 (2020:
HK$31,000).

No sensitivity analysis of bank balances of the Group is
presented as the interest income from bank balances is
negligible.

Fair value risk

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the Group’s financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

KIEZERERBRAF
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31. NOTE TO CONSOLIDATED CASHFLOW 31. Z&84BR e REXRKHE
STATEMENTS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: METHELANAEEYHER:
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings
HEAE RATER
(note 19) (note 20)
(Bt 3E19) (Bt 5£20)
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
At 1 April 2019 A2019F4H1H — 9,364
Changes from financing cash flows: MEREeREL S
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE AT RIE = 4,960
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITERX = (6,893)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilites & & &2~ & 28 9 17 3% (637) =
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilites 78 & & & | 2.3 9 1 3k (53) -
Total changes from financing cash flows MERSTEZHBE (690) (1,933)
Other changes: H fth B &) :
New leases EE 2,413 —
Interest expenses PN 53 —
At 31 March 2020 202053 A 31H 1,776 7,431
Changes from financing cash flows: RERSREE
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBITER = (1,887)
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities & & & A& & 9~ 3% (1,321) —
Payment of interest portion of lease liabilities 70 & & & | 2 % 5 1 3% (59) —
Total changes from financing cash flows RERSRELERTE (1,380) (1,887)
Other change: H fth B
Interest expenses FMERX 59 _
At 31 March 2021 720213831 H 455 5,544

2021 FEE£ 3,
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32.

OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets I REBEE

Interests in subsidiaries LEINGIPA ¥
Current assets REEE

Prepayments TE{T RIB

Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U Bt B A B ZRIA

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED
Current liabilities REBEE

Accruals, deposits and other payables BETER e EM

JE 1~ X8

Net current assets and net assets FEBEEFHERFEE
EQUITY =

Share capital [i& 7

Reserves i
Total equity R

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25
June 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Ng Sing Mui
REN
Director

BF

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED Kk JEIEIREEBR A T

7K \) B B iR R 3R
2020
20204
Notes HK$’000
B 5 FET
33 - -
145 393
83,154 45,596
6,382 8,786
89,681 54,775
50 205
50 205
89,631 54,570
23 6,000 6,000
24 83,631 48,570
89,631 54,570

DEEEEN2021566 258 #t & &
BRETNETAATREREE

Sze Tan Nei
i 3 1
Director

EF
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33. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 3. RMIB ARl 2 R

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: B ARGEBWET :

Place of Equity interest owned
incorporation/ Issued ordinary by the Company
Name of subsidiary operation share capital At 31 March Principal activities
ML ERTEBER A2ARMNIA3H
ME AR BB R B g 2< BE N RE FEXK
%
2020
20204F
Directly held:
BEERFE:
Winson Group Hong Kong BVI UsS $1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited
KIBEEEEBEEERAR RERXES 17T REER
Perma Growth Investment BVI us $1 100 — Dormant
Limited”
KR EFRAF EEEALES 17T I
Indirectly held:
BEEFE :
Winson Cleaning Service Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 100 100 Provisions of environmental
Company Limited hygiene and related
services and airline
catering support services
KIBBERBRB AR AR FE 6,000,000 7T RERBEERIEER
BARMZEE R E
Pl 75
Winson Professional Pest Hong Kong HK$8,275,000 100 100 Provisions of pest
Control Company management services
Limited
BEEXRBERAA FE 8,275,000/ 7T RHUEREERS
Wealthy Strong Investment Hong Kong HK$6,652,026 100 100 Property holding
Limited
ERREBFRAA BB 6,652,026 7% 7T MERE
# This company is newly incorporated this year L /N1 DAV NS i o ) VA

None of the subsidiaries of the Company had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of or any time during the reporting periods.

BERDAMNE QRN RE RIS
P {E f7] B S R B A ) 1) K (BB (B %

S s
A °

Annual Report 2021 2021 £ #§




Financial Summary

MEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for  #4xE A A A AT TR EEB X G A M B HE
the five years ended 31 March 2021, as extracted from the audited K7~ & E & £2021E3831B I A AEE
consolidated financial statements issued by the Company is set out HHEULBEENABEBEEHI WO T - 5/
below. The summary does not form part of the audited financial ZE I N EKKEEXT KRR —Z D °

statements.

Results E4
Revenue g

Profit for the year F 5
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Total assets BEE
Total liabilities BfERE
Total equity T 7 4B R

WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

529,987
73,809

276,464
67,782
208,682

KIEZERERBRAF

2020 2019 2018 2017
2020 % 20194 20184F 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TAET TAET TAET TAET

569,559 537,324 508,106 467,513
20,702 20,842 21,804 8,679

207,652 191,686 186,099 195,416
72,779 67,495 72,659 103,796
134,873 124,191 113,440 91,620
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WINSON HOLDINGS HONG KONG LIMITED

N 2 o 7 98 A L 2 ) ‘ ‘

www.winsongrouphk.com
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